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Sept. 30, 2016

To the citizens of the State of Oklahoma:

The comprehensive annual financial report for the Office of Management and Enterprise 
Services Employees Group Insurance Department (EGID) for the fiscal year ended Dec. 31, 
2015, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness 
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of EGID. 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects 
and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of 
operations of EGID. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of 
EGID’s financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections: introductory, 
financial and statistical. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, EGID’s 
executive organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes 
the independent auditors’ report, Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and the 
basic financial statements. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic 
information presented on a multiyear basis.

	
EGID is a special-purpose, government entity engaged solely in business-type activities. 

EGID is a legal trust which administers, manages and provides group health, dental, life and 
disability insurance for current and former employees of state agencies, school districts and other 
governmental units of the State of Oklahoma. EGID provides insurance solely to eligible current 
and former employees and their dependents. The Oklahoma Insurance and Benefits Board 
has oversight responsibility and decision-making authority to adopt policies regarding EGID 
financial matters.

  
It is EGID’s mission to serve Oklahoma by providing, with the highest degree of 

efficiency, a wide range of quality insurance benefits that are competitively priced and uniquely 
designed to meet the needs of participants.

EGID provides a self-insured health, dental, life and disability program (HealthChoice) 
which is actuarially rated to provide premiums adequate to meet the payment of all claims, 
administrative expenses and any change in reserve estimates. EGID maintains reserves to 
provide for current claim liabilities as required. At the present time, EGID has not transferred any 
risk of loss through reinsurance contracts.

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Employees Group Insurance Department
1



During the year ended Dec. 31, 2015, participants could choose between HealthChoice 
and four, federally qualified health maintenance organizations (HMO) during their initial 
enrollment. Each HMO requires participants to reside or work within a designated service area, 
which consists primarily of the Oklahoma City and Tulsa metropolitan areas, but have expanded 
to rural parts of Oklahoma as provider networks have been established. HealthChoice has no 
such restriction and is thus available to all eligible participants statewide and across the nation. 
After enrollment, members have the opportunity to change health carriers during an annual 
Option Period. Coverage elections can be changed during the year if the member experiences a 
change in family status event as defined by Internal Revenue Service Code Section 125. 

The following chart illustrates total primary participation in coverage offered by 
HealthChoice and HMOs by type of entity as of Dec. 31, 2015.

Total Primary Participants
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Exhibit 1

Among the current primary members, approximately 19 percent were covered by the 
HMO plans at Dec. 31, 2015. For the Medicare and pre-Medicare populations, approximately 9 
percent were covered by the HMO plans at Dec. 31, 2015. 

Each year during the months of October and November, participants can change their 
coverage elections for the next year. All carrier changes and coverage elected during this period 
will be effective from Jan. 1 until Dec. 31 of the same year.

EGID, by statute, provides insurance coverage to all employees and dependents that meet 
eligibility requirements. An employee’s coverage begins the first day of the month following 
the month of employment. The employee has 30 days after beginning employment to acquire 
health, dental and life insurance for his dependents. If the employee elects dependent coverage, 
the employee must cover all eligible dependents, unless the dependent is covered by other group 
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insurance. The employee also has 30 days after acquiring a new dependent to add that dependent 
to coverage. After this period, an employee may still add dependents during the aforementioned 
annual Option Period. Coverage could be delayed, however, if the dependent has been dropped 
in the past 12 months.

	
A current employee who leaves employment can add or retain certain insurance 

coverage depending on his status at the end of his employment. A former employee can also 
add or continue dependent coverage that was in effect while he was a current employee. Retired 
employees can continue all health, dental and life coverage. If the member has vested his 
retirement benefits but is not yet eligible to draw those benefits, he also retains the right to health, 
dental and life coverage. In the event an employee terminates employment or a dependent loses 
eligibility due to divorce or by exceeding age limitations, health and dental coverage can be 
continued if the member or his dependent meet the requirements set forth under the Consolidated 
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA).

 
	 The following table illustrates the available coverage by participant group:

Available Coverage by Participant Group

State
Employees

Education
Employees

Local
Government
Employees

OK Public
Employees
Retirement 

System

Teachers’
Retirement

System
Survivors COBRA

Health 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Dental 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Life 4 4 4 4 4 4

Disability 4 4

Medicare
Supplement 4 4 4 4

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The economic issues facing the state, its agencies and school districts, other participating 
groups, and their employees are a key consideration when EGID sets premium rates. The board 
and EGID administration are very aware that increases in premiums affect the already tight 
budgets of participating groups, as well as individual members. Alternatives to rate increases 
such as changes in copays or deductibles must be considered, especially when groups are facing 
budget cuts. EGID is faced with the daunting task of weighing the alternatives and making the 
difficult and sometimes unpopular decisions necessary to meet projected costs. EGID’s goal is to 
keep premiums as low as possible and continue to provide quality and affordable health care to 
current and former employees of state, education and local government entities. 

Health Care Trends

The insurance industry monitors health care costs by establishing a percentage of 
cost increases known as “trend.” The definition and factors affecting trend are discussed in 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 
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According to the 2016 Segal Health Plan Cost Trend Survey, health benefit plan 
cost trend rates for 2016 are forecast to increase for most medical plan options and increase 
substantially for prescription drug coverage to double-digit rates. The survey goes on to say 
prescription drug price inflation is approaching double digits, more than 10 times the rate of 
overall consumer price index (CPI) for all goods and services. The survey states prescription 
drugs account for 20 to 25 percent of total health care spending for the average plan sponsor.    

According to the 2016 Segal survey, projected trends for PPO plans for 2016 are:

•	 Medical and Prescription Drug (Current and Former < Age 65)	   7.8 percent 
•	 Medical and Prescription Drug (Former Ages 65+)		    3.2 percent 
•	 Dental (Indemnity Plans)					       	   3.5 percent 

Projected trends for 2016 for all categories above are higher than that projected for 2015. 

EGID’s actuaries used the following trends for setting rates for 2015:

•	 Medical (Current and Former < Age 65)				      5.5 percent
•	 Medical (Former Ages 65+)					       3.0 percent
•	 Prescription Drug							         8.5 percent
•	 Dental								          1.0 percent
	
The actual trends experienced by EGID for 2015 are discussed in Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis. 

According to the survey, health care cost trends continue to outpace wage increases and 
overall consumer price inflation for other goods and services. Efforts to bend the cost curve 
seem to be working to lower the utilization rates for medical treatments, but price inflation for 
treatment continues to be problematic. Segal is also optimistic that plan sponsors that engage 
in some types of cost containment strategies will continue to get high value from their medical 
benefit programs, while controlling plan cost increases in the future. As a result, substantial 
opportunities exist to avoid unnecessary costs and lower future trend rates. 

Investment Outlook		

EGID’s investment portfolio experienced a positive return in 2015 (+1.82 percent) and 
through Aug. 31, 2016 (+5.42 percent).  The U.S. economy continues to improve with lower 
unemployment and rising wage growth, although the Federal Reserve has maintained interest 
rates near zero. Year-to-date through August, both the equity portfolio (+8.44 percent) and the 
fixed income portfolio (+5.93 percent) have contributed positively to overall results.

More information on how economic conditions affected EGID in 2015, as well as EGID’s 
2015 trend experience, is included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

In an effort to secure member’s confidential information and cut costs, beginning with 
plan year 2017, HealthChoice members can access their Explanation of Benefits (EOB) via a 
secure website and opt out of receiving paper EOBs. HealthChoice network providers and non-
network providers will also have online access to their remittance advices via secure website or 
via a standard HIPAA transaction. 

Beginning Jan. 1, 2016, HealthChoice introduced a new program called HealthChoice 
Select that will result in overall plan savings while improving members’ access to quality and 
affordable care by designing an innovative care model for bundled payments for services. 
This program offers members the opportunity to have certain services performed at certain 
participating facilities with no out-of-pocket costs (i.e., deductibles or coinsurance). Participating 
facilities agree to offer certain services to members at a bundled rate. A bundled rate is a single 
payment for facility, physician and ancillary services associated with a particular service. 
Providers can choose to participate in one or more of the categories, however, providers are not 
required to participate in the program. Currently there are 53 facility locations providing over 
800 outpatient services and over 80 inpatient services. 

CVS/caremark became HealthChoice’s pharmacy benefit manager (PBM) effective Jan. 
1, 2016. EGID is utilizing CVS/caremark’s Standard Performance Drug List with Exclusions 
and national pharmacy network for all claims. The contract with CVS/caremark will produce an 
estimated 12 percent savings in pharmacy spend through 2016 compared to the 2015 contract 
with Express Scripts.

  
As part of the transition to CVS/caremark, EGID ended the direct contract for Medicare 

Part D with the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) and moved its HealthChoice 
members onto the PBM’s Part D contract, commonly referred to as an Employer Group Waiver 
Plan (EGWP). This change was made due to the increased administrative burden CMS places on 
plans and due to an industry shift away from CMS direct contracts. 

Beginning Jan. 1, 2016, the responsibility of transmitting eligibility and remitting 
premium payments for state employees to the respective health, dental and vision carriers 
was transitioned from the Employees Benefits Department (EBD) to EGID. This transition 
streamlined the current reconciliation process for all insurance premium payments, standardized 
exports, reporting and premium payment, and achieved overall agency consolidation efficiency 
in this area. Streamlining the reconciliation process also enables reports to be automated and 
made available to coordinators and carriers in a timely manner.

The HealthChoice FOCUS Plan was effective Jan. 1, 2016, and was offered to pre-
Medicare former employees and surviving dependents who live in designated ZIP code 
areas. This plan offered a focused network of providers affiliated with Oklahoma Health 
Network’s (OHN’s) population health management program and extensive coordinated care 
initiatives. In cooperation with OHN, HealthChoice offered a plan that provides lower out-of-
pocket costs, high-quality health care and a high-performing, value based network.   Due to 
minimal participation in the FOCUS plan, it will be discontinued effective Dec. 31, 2016 and 
HealthChoice intends to implement a robust care coordination program through OHN for the 
entire pre-Medicare population effective Jan. 1, 2017.  

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Employees Group Insurance Department
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In an effort to reduce the risk of exposing confidential member information and to reduce 
printing and mailing costs, EGID implemented two significant changes to the employer group 
monthly billing statements. By making these changes, EGID is proactively reducing the risk 
of identity theft for covered individuals, employers and to EGID itself. The first change was 
implemented April 1, 2016. That change removed Social Security numbers from the billing 
statements and replaced them with Member ID codes. The second phase of this implementation 
began May 1, 2016, and it eliminated the physical mailing of these billing statements. Insurance 
coordinators were trained instead to retrieve the billing statements by logging into the secure 
Employer Self Service application which they have utilized for enrollment purposes for many 
years.                 

EGID upgraded its primary operations system, which includes eligibility and premium 
accounting functions, from the V3 Classic application to the V3 Browser version. The classic 
application went live in 2003 and had been very effective since that time, but had reached the 
end of its developmental life cycle. The intent of this upgrade was to take advantage of new 
functionality not available in the classic version and create a more web-friendly application. 
After a two-year implementation, the system successfully went live in May 2015. 

Beginning in September 2014, EGID instituted a new program for managing the 
increasing commercial spend on compound medications. Plans across the country saw costs 
for compound medications increase exponentially during plan year 2013. EGID’s current 
pharmacy benefit manager (PBM), Express Scripts (ESI), presented a robust prior authorization 
and exclusion compound management program, which EGID implemented on Sept. 15, 2014. 
During the rolling year before Sept. 15, 2014, EGID had spent $6.75 million on compounded 
medications for our commercial population. For plan year 2015, EGID spent $190,675 on 
compounded medications for our commercial members, a decrease of 95.6 percent. The ESI 
Compound Management program successfully controlled the compound spend for EGID through 
plan year 2015, but keeping it under control requires vigilance. 

 During plan year 2015, EGID saw compound spend for the Medicare population begin 
to rise, from $715,683 during plan year 2014 to $1,222,011 for plan year 2015. EGID also made 
the decision in 2015 to transition to a new PBM, CVS/caremark, for plan year 2016. During the 
transition, EGID ensured that a robust compound management program was continued for the 
commercial population and that a new compound management program was initiated for the 
Medicare population. The new program for commercial members requires prior authorization 
for any compounds costing more than $300. The new compound management program for the 
Medicare population ensures that all ingredients of a compound are Part D covered medications 
and if any ingredients are not Part D medications the compound is not covered. 

In 2014, HealthChoice established the tier system of reimbursement for short-term acute 
inpatient and mental health and substance use services that recognizes differences in facility 
characteristics. In 2015, HealthChoice worked to apply the same tier system for reimbursement 
of outpatient services for these providers. In both instances in an effort to achieve the highest 
results and be transparent in the process, HealthChoice collaborated with a task force of impacted 
network provider facilities. HealthChoice finalized the outpatient reimbursement system in the 
fourth quarter of 2015 to be effective for dates of service beginning June 1, 2016.

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Employees Group Insurance Department
6



In September 2015, EGID implemented a health care decision support system. This 
integrated analytic database provides advanced analysis and reporting capabilities that will 
support the effective management of the HealthChoice insurance plans. The system enables 
informed and timely decision-making in areas such as plan design and modeling, early 
identification of trends, and measurement of program effectiveness.  

EGID continues to research the possibility of joining a coalition of other Oklahoma 
health care organizations in an effort to improve health care quality and access to care 
while controlling costs. This partnership will link patients and their providers together in a 
communitywide health information network focused on improving the health of patients and 
communities, reducing inefficiency and waste, and coordinating care more effectively. 

On Jan. 1, 2014, EGID began a three year pilot project to test the value proposition of 
a program that offers financial incentives to both the health care provider and the patient. The 
program engages both stakeholders for each care encounter in which the provider and patient 
incorporate evidence-based medicine treatment guidelines, patient health education remedies, 
and other proven medical interventions made available and recorded through the program in 
rendering and utilization of health care. The pilot ends Dec. 31, 2016.

EGID conducted a pilot program during 2013 to evaluate bariatric weight loss procedures 
for participants that met specific medical criteria through a certification process. Outcomes over 
a two-year period were monitored and studied to determine future policies regarding bariatric 
procedures. A final report was issued in 2016 and a limited benefit will be implemented Jan. 1, 
2017.

In 2015, EGID received over $18.5 million from the Medicare Coverage Gap Discount 
Program and $19 million from the Medicare Part D Reinsurance. These additional funds offset 
pharmacy costs for members enrolled in a HealthChoice Medicare Supplement Part D plan. For 
2016, EGID no longer holds a direct contract for Part D with CMS but became an Employer 
Group Waiver Plan through its Pharmacy Benefit Manager’s Part D plan. EGID anticipates 
receiving similar funds for the Gap Discount and Reinsurance programs in 2016. 

In order to streamline, standardize and improve the quality of the Network Provider 
contracting process and to address the needs of the provider community, delegated contracting 
was made available to select provider groups during 2014 and was extended to additional 
providers during 2015. Delegated contracting is a formal process by which EGID gives 
another entity the authority to perform contracting functions on behalf of its practitioners. 
Practitioners covered under delegated contracting agreements do not have to submit full 
contracting paperwork and document copies to health plans. Instead, the delegated entity submits 
preapproved provider profiles containing the required information for enrollment. Delegated 
contracting offers an industry standard method for large provider groups to contract and enroll 
providers without providing copious amounts of documentation.

 
EGID has reduced errors from provider matching for claims payment by implementing 

inpatient and mental health and substance use (MH/SU) tiers. The tiers were put in place in the 
third quarter of 2014. Multiple National Provider Identifier numbers were transitioned to the 
newly implemented Provider Network Management software in 2015. The recent implementation 
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of inpatient and MH/SU tiers has also helped to assure the reimbursement is consistent with the 
provider contract terms no matter the claim submission type. 

The HealthChoice H.E.L.P. 4 program began in plan year 2011 as a wellness initiative 
for primary members ages 20 and older enrolled in the HealthChoice High, Basic and S-Account 
plans. The primary goals of H.E.L.P. 4 included:

•	 Placing attention on face-to-face interaction between the member and their primary 
care physician.

•	 Using preventive medicine in addressing health concerns.
•	 Promoting wellness by making members aware of health risks related to lifestyle 

choices.
•	 Supporting initiatives that work to improve the overall health of participating 

members.

For plan years 2011 and 2012, the following requirements had to be met to qualify for the 
incentive:  

•	 Complete a preventive visit with a physician (covered at no cost to the member).
•	 Have a metabolic and/or lipid blood panel (covered at no cost to the member).
•	 Complete an online health risk assessment (HRA) and update the biometric 

information within the HRA. 
	
To increase participation in 2013, the H.E.L.P. 4 initiative was streamlined. A member 

was no longer required to have a metabolic or lipid blood panel or complete the HRA, although 
both services were still free of charge and available to the member. During plan year 2011, 
eligible members who completed the program requirements received a $100 incentive payment. 
Beginning plan year 2012, the incentive payment was increased to $200. Since inception of the 
program, adult preventive office visits have increased approximately 60 percent. The program 
will end Dec. 31, 2016.     

 
      

LEGISLATION

The following are recently passed laws that affect EGID:

Federal

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA) went into effect March 23, 2010. 
Recent changes that affect EGID are as follows:  

•	 For plan years 2012-2019, the ACA requires plan sponsors, such as EGID, be subject 
to an annual fee to fund a federal comparative effectiveness research program (known 
as the PCORI fee). In 2013, the fee was $2 per covered life and in 2015 became $2.08 
per covered life.



•	 Beginning in 2014, the Transitional Reinsurance Fee under ACA imposed an annual 
fee on group health plans, including EGID. The established rate for 2014 was $63 per 
covered life, $44 per covered life for 2015, and $27 per covered life for 2016.

•	 Beginning Jan. 1, 2014, ACA imposed annual limits on the amount an enrollee in a 
non-grandfathered plan must pay for essential health benefits through cost sharing. 
The deadline was modified to Jan. 1, 2015, for plans, such as EGID, that use a 
separate combination of TPAs and PBMs to manage claims payments.

•	 The ACA requirements for automatic enrollment will not be implemented, so this is 
no longer a concern for EGID.

•	 The penalty phase of ACA’s Pay or Play or Shared Employer Responsibility was 
delayed until 2016, covering the 2015 plan year. Pay or Play had a modest effect on 
HealthChoice enrollment.

•	 Under §6055 of the Internal Revenue Code as implemented by ACA, insurers had 
new reporting requirements to both participants and the IRS. EGID completed the 
necessary programming changes and reporting for plan year 2015.

•	 Under Section 2717 of ACA, plan sponsors of non-grandfathered plans must submit 
annual reports on features of the sponsor’s health care coverage that may improve 
health care quality, such as disease management or wellness programs. These reports 
were to be provided to both the U.S. DHHS and to employees during open enrollment 
beginning in 2012. In the absence of guidance through 2015, no reporting has been 
required. In 2016, the Department of Labor published proposed regulations that 
would require the reporting beginning for plan year 2019 and thereafter.

•	 Beginning in 2020, ACA imposes a 40 percent excise tax (the “Cadillac tax”) on the 
value of health insurance benefits that exceeds certain limits defined in regulations. 
Currently, only one HealthChoice plan would exceed these limits, and it will be 
phased out during 2017 due to its low enrollment.

•	 Other ongoing changes include implementation of the HIPAA 5010 transmission 
standards.

  
Oklahoma 

House Bill 1711 (2016) permits the Health Insurance Plan to offer an alternative 
insurance plan to retires under the age of 65 at a rate that is between $100 less and up to $100 
more than the monthly premium for active employees.

 
House Bill 2785 (2016) allows cities to participate in the Disability Insurance Program.
 
House Bill 2963 (2016) requires the Health Insurance Plan to provide coverage for the 

screening, diagnosis and treatment of autism spectrum disorders.
 
House Bill 3071 (2016) requires that any mandated health insurance coverage enacted 

after Nov. 1, 2016, apply to the Health Insurance Plan.

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Employees Group Insurance Deprtment
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House Bill 1567 (2015) permits the Health Insurance Plan to provide for the application 
of deductibles and copayment or coinsurance provisions that are based on contracts with 
providers for specific services based on levels of outcomes or cost or type of provider. 

House Bill 2190 (2014) requires health benefit plans to utilize prior authorization forms 
for obtaining any prior authorization for prescription drug benefits. The bill provides that a form 
cannot exceed three pages in length, excluding any instructions or guiding documentation and 
a health benefit plan may customize the content of the form specific to the prescription drug for 
which the prior authorization is being requested. 

House Bill 3215 (2014) changes the liability of a county jail for the medical expenses or 
expenses of a state inmate or person in custody from $8,000 to $6,000. 	

House Bill 3282 (2014) provides that certain policies terminate on a certain date. The bill 
also repeals all sections of law pertaining to the Health Insurance High Risk Pool Act. 

House Bill 1107 (2013) permits current state employees to opt out of the health and 
dental basic plan options only and retain the life and disability plan benefits; and also provides 
that the disbursement of the flexible benefit allowance for participants on a biweekly payroll 
system will be credited over 24 pay periods resulting in two pay periods that do not reflect a 
credit. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

EGID management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 
structure designed to ensure that assets are protected and to provide accurate accounting data. 
The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance 
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a 
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived. The valuation of costs and benefits 
requires estimates and judgments by management.

Single Audit. EGID does not receive federal funding and, therefore, is not required 
to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit 
Amendments of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

Budgeting Controls. All administrative expenses are funded from premiums. Funds 
needed for administrative expenses are transferred to a revolving fund, which is not subject to 
fiscal year limitations and is under the control of EGID. EGID maintains budgetary controls 
to ensure compliance with provisions embodied in the annual budget. The level of budgetary 
control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot exceed the budgeted amount) is 
established by function and activity. EGID maintains an encumbrance accounting system as its 
primary technique for accomplishing budgetary control.

As demonstrated by the financial statements included in this report, EGID is meeting its 
responsibility for sound financial management.

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Employees Group Insurance Department
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Proprietary Operations. EGID revenue from operations consists of health, dental, life 
and disability premiums remitted by each participating entity for their employees, or directly 
by former employees and participants under COBRA. Also included in premium revenue 
are premium subsidies received from the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) 
Medicare Part D program. Another source of operating revenues is a risk adjustment fee 
collected from HMOs. Operational expenses are primarily paid and incurred claims. 

The following charts illustrate enrollment, premiums and claims broken down between 
current employees and pre-Medicare and Medicare-eligible former employees.

Current employees comprise 76 percent of EGID’s primary member population and 72 
percent of 2015 paid claims. Pre-Medicare former employees make up only 5 percent of EGID’s 
primary member population but account for 10 percent of paid claims, and Medicare-eligible 
former employees ages 65 and older make up 19 percent of EGID’s primary member population 
and 18 percent of paid claims.

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Employees Group Insurance Department
11

Enrollment (Covered Lives) vs. Incurred Claims
Health Plan - Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015

Exhibit 2

Enrollment Incurred Claims

Current Pre-Medicare Medicare

35,881

9,101

142,173

$90,241,291

$168,117,861

$660,534,322



Pharmacy claims are included in total health claims. For current employees, health 
premiums for 2015 were $30.3 million over incurred claims for the year, a difference of 5 percent. 
For pre-Medicare former employees, health premiums fell short of covering incurred claims by 
$36.1 million or 40 percent, primarily because premiums for current employees and pre-Medicare 
former employees are priced at a fully blended rate. For Medicare-eligible former employees, 
health premiums were $26.0 million over incurred claims for a difference of 15 percent.
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The following exhibit illustrates medical and prescription drug claims for each participant 
category.

Medical and Prescription Drug Paid Claims
Health Plan - Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015

Medical Claims

20%

80%

24%

76%

33%

67%

Exhibit 4

Current Pre-Medicare Medicare

Prescription Drug Claims

For the current employee and pre-Medicare former employee population, approximately 
one-fifth of total paid claims are for prescription drugs. For the Medicare-eligible former 
employee population, nearly two-thirds of paid claims are for prescription drugs.



Exhibit 5
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(1) Chart does not include booking or amortization of premium deficiency reserve.

Total HealthChoice Expenses(1)

Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015

The HealthChoice expense for payment of health, pharmacy, dental, life and disability 
claims was 95.5 percent. Only 4.5 percent of the department’s total expenses were for 
administrative costs which compares favorably with industry averages. 

	
Cash and Investment Management. EGID maintains minimum cash balances as 

required by statute to fund released warrants. All excess cash is deposited with a custodial 
bank, which in turn credits the EGID short-term cash money market account. In addition to the 
money market account, EGID has two fixed income money managers and three equity securities 
managers.

All invested funds are regulated by the EGID investment policy set by the Oklahoma 
Employees Insurance and Benefits Board (OEIBB) and monitored by EGID administration.

The policy speaks specifically to liquidity, asset quality, maturity and duration of fixed 
income terms, and specific asset mix by statutory fund. In addition, the policy sets benchmark 
expectations for each type of money manager.

A more detailed summary of EGID’s financial position and result of operations is 
included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Office of Management and Enterprise Services Employees Group Insurance Department
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OTHER  INFORMATION

Independent Audit. The accounting firm of KPMG LLP has been retained to perform an 
annual audit. The independent auditors’ report on the basic financial statements is included in the 
financial section of this report.

Acknowledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report was 
made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the finance unit. In addition, I wish 
to acknowledge the contribution made by Mr. Gary Beebe, Comptroller. 

In closing, without the leadership and support of the OEIBB and senior staff of EGID, 
preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Respectfully submitted,

Diana O’Neal	
Deputy Administrator, Finance
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

Members of the Board 
Oklahoma Employees Insurance and Benefits Board: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Employees Group Insurance Department 
(EGID), a department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services, as of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the EGID’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the Employees Group Insurance Department, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and 
the respective changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

KPMG LLP
210 Park Avenue, Suite 2850
Oklahoma City, OK 73102-5683

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,  
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in note 2 to the financial statements, in 2015, EGID adopted Governmental 
Accounting Standards Boards Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting of Pensions,
effective January 1, 2014. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that management’s discussion and analysis on pages 
21 through 26 and the schedules of EGID’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and 
contributions on pages 57 through 59 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 13, 2016 
on our consideration of the EGID’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the EGID’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
May 13, 2016 
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Overview of the Financial Statements 

The EGID basic financial statements are prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America for governmental entities and insurance enterprises where applicable. The primary 
purpose of EGID is to provide group health, dental, life, and disability insurance for employees of state agencies, 
school districts, and other governmental units as set forth in Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes. EGID is a 
department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services. 

The three financial statements presented within the basic financial statements are as follows: 

Balance Sheets – This statement presents information reflecting EGID’s assets, liabilities, and fund equity. Fund 
equity represents the amount of total assets less total liabilities. The balance sheet is classified as to current and 
noncurrent assets and liabilities. For purposes of the financial statements, current assets and liabilities are those 
assets and liabilities with immediate liquidity or which are collectible or becoming due within twelve months of 
the statement date. EGID’s investment balances are considered current assets, as EGID has historically experienced 
a high portfolio turnover rate. 

Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Equity – This statement reflects EGID’s operating revenue 
and expenses, as well as nonoperating revenue during the year. The major source of operating revenue is premium 
income and the major sources of operating expenses are health, dental, life, and disability benefits. The change in 
fund equity for an enterprise fund is similar to net profit or loss for a private sector insurance company. 

Statements of Cash Flows – The statements of cash flows are presented on the direct method of reporting, which 
reflects cash flows from operating, capital and related financing, and investing activities. Cash collections and 
payments are reflected in this statement to arrive at the net increase or decrease in cash for the fiscal year. 
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Financial Highlights 

The management of the EGID offers readers of EGID’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis 
of the financial activities of the entity for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013. 

2015 vs. 2014
December 31 Change

2015 2014 2013 Amount

Cash and investments $ 334,006,622  411,778,392  422,638,868  (77,771,770) 
Premiums receivable, net 25,933,023  33,600,779  30,127,034  (7,667,756) 
Other current assets 38,186,542  36,225,345  19,496,261  1,961,197  

Total current assets 398,126,187  481,604,516  472,262,163  (83,478,329) 

Office equipment, net 2,697,956  1,787,003  1,353,617  910,953  

Total assets 400,824,143  483,391,519  473,615,780  (82,567,376) 

Deferred outflows of resources 1,645,058  572,776  —  1,072,282  

Total assets and
deferred outflows $ 402,469,201  483,964,295  473,615,780  (81,495,094) 

Claims liabilities $ 118,001,000  114,338,000  98,073,000  3,663,000  
Disability liabilities (current only) 3,004,000  3,019,103  3,119,124  (15,103) 
Premium deficiency reserves 43,966,000  54,331,462  10,896,876  (10,365,462) 
Other current liabilities 25,682,486  31,621,810  20,708,730  (5,939,324) 

Total current liabilities 190,653,486  203,310,375  132,797,730  (12,656,889) 

Total noncurrent liabilities 10,477,338  11,190,883  11,685,000  (713,545) 

Total liabilities 201,130,824  214,501,258  144,482,730  (13,370,434) 

Deferred inflows of resources 1,880,237  2,773,089  —  (892,852) 

Invested in capital assets 2,697,956  1,787,003  1,353,617  910,953  
Unrestricted fund equity 196,760,184  264,902,945  327,779,433  (68,142,761) 

Total fund equity 199,458,140  266,689,948  329,133,050  (67,231,808) 

Total liabilities,
deferred inflows,
and fund equity $ 402,469,201  483,964,295  473,615,780  (81,495,094) 
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2015 vs. 2014
Year ended December 31 Change

2015 2014 2013 Amount

Premium revenue $ 979,663,600  941,358,109  903,192,032  38,305,491  
Other operating revenue 123,231  936,685  1,708,711  (813,454) 

Total operating revenue 979,786,831  942,294,794  904,900,743  37,492,037  

Incurred claims expense 1,015,375,127 929,382,378  873,841,859  85,992,749  
Change in premium deficiency reserves (10,365,462) 43,434,586  10,746,876  (53,800,048) 
Administrative and claims processing

expense 46,955,893  50,027,600  40,738,475  (3,071,707) 

Total operating expenses 1,051,965,558 1,022,844,564 925,327,210  29,120,994  

Operating loss (72,178,727) (80,549,770) (20,426,467) 8,371,043  
Net investment income 4,946,919  22,137,347  36,989,410  (17,190,428) 

Change in fund equity (67,231,808) (58,412,423) 16,562,943  (8,819,385) 

Fund equity, beginning of year 266,689,948  329,133,050  312,570,107  (62,443,102) 
Cumulative effect of adopting new

accounting standard (note 2(p)) —  (4,030,679) —  4,030,679  

Fund equity, beginning of year restated 266,689,948  325,102,371  312,570,107  (58,412,423) 

Fund equity, end of year $ 199,458,140  266,689,948  329,133,050  (67,231,808) 

 

EGID’s total assets for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased by approximately 17% from the previous 
year, where there was an increase of 2% in 2014. Cash and investments decreased by $77.8 million or 18.9% during 
2015 due to liquidating investments as a result of unfavorable claims experience while 2014 showed increases of 
$10.9 million or 2.6%. 

In 2015, EGID earned approximately $4.9 million in interest and dividend income, experienced $22.4 million in 
realized gains and $21.6 million in unrealized losses, and paid $711,418 in investment expenses for a net 
investment gain of $4.9 million. In 2014, EGID earned approximately $3.3 million in interest and dividend income, 
experienced $9.1 million in realized gains and $10.4 million in unrealized gains, and paid $606,000 in investment 
expenses for a net investment gain of $22.1 million. EGID’s investment allocation at December 31, 2015 comprises 
approximately 50% fixed income securities, 31% equities, and 19% cash equivalents and comprises approximately 
58% fixed income securities, 34% equities, and 8% cash equivalents at December 31, 2014. 

At year-end, for December 31, 2015, premiums receivable decreased from the prior year by $7.7 million due to an 
$8.2 million employer group payment for premiums being received and posted on December 31, 2015 whereas in 
the prior year this payment was received after year-end. In the prior year, premiums receivable increased 
$3.5 million, primarily due to an increase in premiums. The increase in other current assets during 2015 of 
$2.0 million is primarily due to $4.2 million increase in the Medicare Part D reinsurance receivable offset by a 
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$3.8 million decrease in the Medicare Part D Coverage Gap Discount Program. The increase for other current 
assets in 2014 of $7.2 million is primarily due to a $4.4 million increase in the Medicare Part D Coverage Gap 
Discount Program receivable, a $1.8 million receivable for pharmacy rebates and a $575,000 receivable from the 
pharmacy benefits manager for overpaid claims. 

Total liabilities as of December 31, 2015 decreased $13.4 million from December 31, 2014 primarily due to a 
$10.4 million decrease in premium deficiency reserves booked at December 31, 2015 combined with a $3.7 million 
increase in claim liabilities. Additionally, there was a $5.9 million decrease in other liabilities due to a decrease of 
$2.3 million in transitional reinsurance fee assessed as part of the Affordable Care Act (ACA) at year-end and a 
$2.4 million decrease in the Medical Expense Liability Fund (MELF) (see note 15 for additional information 
regarding this fund). Total liabilities as of December 31, 2014 increased $70.0 million from December 31, 2013 
primarily due to a $43.4 million increase in premium deficiency reserves booked at December 31, 2014 combined 
with a $16.3 million increase in claim liabilities and a $9.6 million increase in other liabilities primarily due to the 
transitional reinsurance fee assessed as part of the Affordable Care Act (ACA) at year-end. 

A premium deficiency is required to be recognized if the sum of expected claims costs (including incurred, but not 
yet reported (IBNR)) and all expected claim adjustment expenses exceeds related premiums and anticipated 
investment income. For the health plan, a premium deficiency liability of $40.7 million and $53.9 million was 
recorded at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. For the dental plan, a premium deficiency liability of 
$3.3 million and $304,000 was booked at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. For the disability plan, at 
December 31, 2015, no premium deficiency was necessary. For 2014, a premium deficiency liability of $111,000 
was recorded. 

EGID saw an overall increase in premium revenue for 2015 of approximately $38.3 million due primarily to a 
2.6% increase in premium rates and a 5.2% increase in HealthChoice health plan membership. In 2014, EGID saw 
an overall increase in premium revenue of approximately $38.2 million due primarily to a 3.6% increase in rates 
and an increase in membership during plan year 2014. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, EGID 
earned approximately $123,231 and $937,000, respectively, in other operating income, which consisted primarily 
of risk adjustment fee income. 

Incurred claims comprise 95.6% and 94.8% of EGID’s total expenses in 2015 and 2014, respectively. Changes in 
premium deficiency reserves are not considered in the calculation. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 
2014, total incurred claims increased by $86.0 million and $55.5 million, or 9% and 6.4% over the prior year. 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, health and dental claim costs increased by approximately 
$84.6 million and $57.2 million, respectively, or 9% and 7% over the prior year due to normal claim trend 
projections. In 2015, life benefits expense increased from the prior year by $1.8 million or 7% above the expense 
reported for 2014. During 2014, the expense for life benefits decreased by approximately $341,000 or 1% below 
the prior year. Disability benefits for 2015 decreased $401,680 or 18% from the prior year. Disability benefits for 
2014 decreased $1.3 million or 37% over the prior year. Life and Disability claims can be volatile from year to 
year. 

Administrative expenses decreased by $3.1 million in 2015 over 2014 primarily due to the decrease in transitional 
reinsurance fee and increased $9.3 million in 2014 over the prior year primarily due to the new transitional 
reinsurance fee. Administrative expenses make up 4.5% of EGID’s total expenses in 2015 and 4.9% in 2014. 
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EGID experienced a decrease in total fund equity of approximately $67.2 million, or 25.2%, for the year ended 
December 31, 2015. For 2014, there was a decrease in fund equity of approximately $62.4 million, or 19%. 

During 2015, the Health and Dental program experienced a decrease in fund equity of approximately $66.6 million, 
or 33% from the prior year. The decrease is primarily due to an increase in incurred claims. For the year ended 
December 31, 2014, the Health and Dental program experienced a decrease in fund equity of approximately 
$64.4 million, or 24% over the prior year. The decrease is primarily due to a $54.2 premium deficiency booked at 
December 31, 2014. 

The Life program experienced a decrease in fund equity of approximately $2.7 million or 11% in 2015 and a 
decrease of $601,000 or 2% in 2014. 

The Disability program experienced an increase in fund equity of $2.0 million or 5% in 2015 and an increase in 
fund equity of $4.4 million or 12% in 2014. 

Economic Conditions 

Like many health insurance plans, EGID has experienced higher than anticipated claims costs the past couple years, 
resulting in a decrease in excess fund equity amounts that exceed recommended minimum levels. While excess 
fund equity in self-funded plans is often utilized to mitigate, to some degree, the impact of anticipated cost increases 
on premium rates, many factors may influence the availability of fund equity. As fund equity is essentially a 
function of the size of the plan, minimum required levels could be materially impacted by large increases in covered 
members due to the individual and employer coverage mandates required by the ACA, as well as the enrollment 
of large employer groups that are eligible but do not currently participate in the plan. 

The insurance industry monitors healthcare costs by establishing a percentage of cost increases known as “trend.” 
Trend is the forecast change in health plans’ per capita claims cost determined by insurance carriers, managed care 
organizations, and third-party administrators. Many factors influence trend, including the following: 

 Price inflation 

 Deductibles and copayments 

 Cost-shifting 

 Utilization increases due to aging, product promotion, and improved diagnostic services 

 The availability and use of more expensive drug therapies 

 Government mandated benefits and other legislative changes 

 Advances in medical technologies 
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According to Aon Hewitt, EGID’s consulting actuarial firm, the 2015 national healthcare trends for plans similar 
to the HealthChoice High plan was 2.7% for medical only, 13.4% for pharmacy only, or 5.1% combined. The 
national trend for Medicare supplement plans was 4.0% for medical only, 9.3% for pharmacy only, or 8.0% 
combined. In 2015, on average, EGID’s active and pre-Medicare retiree trend was 5.4% for medical only, 6.3% 
for pharmacy only, or 5.6% combined. EGID’s trend for the Medicare supplement plan increased to 7.0% for 
medical only, 17.6% for pharmacy only, or 14.5% combined. These trends are adjusted for plan design and provide 
contracting changes during the measurement period. 

Since premium rates for the following plan year are set in August, the rate setting process applies trend factors for 
claims incurred through April. The medical trend applied by EGID’s actuaries for calculating 2015 rates was 4.5% 
for active employees and pre-Medicare retirees and 2.0% for Medicare retirees. The medical trend applied by 
EGID’s actuaries for calculating 2014 rates was 5.5% for active employees and pre-Medicare retirees and 3.0% 
for Medicare retirees. The prescription drug trend used for setting 2015 and 2014 rates was 7.5% and 8.5% for 
active employees, pre-Medicare retirees, and Medicare retirees. The dental trend used for setting 2015 and 2014 
rates was 2.5% and 1.0%. 

EGID’s investment portfolio experienced positive returns during 2015. Performance returns for EGID’s total 
investment portfolio was 1.8% in 2015 and 6.2% in 2014. 

In the commercial health insurance industry, “medical loss ratio” (MLR) measures the percentage of each premium 
dollar that is spent on providing healthcare to their customers versus administrative costs. The medical loss ratio 
is a basic indicator of an insurer’s efficiency in delivering services. The ACA establishes a minimum loss ratio of 
80% for the individual and small group health insurance segments, and 85% for the large group segment. While 
this requirement does not apply to self-insured plans, EGID’s MLR of 103.6% in 2015 and 98.3% in 2014 compares 
very favorably to the ACA requirements and industry standards. 
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
(A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2015 and 2014

Assets 2015 2014

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 90,349,079 88,321,322
Investments 243,657,543 323,457,070
Receivables:

Interest and dividends receivable 1,143,962 733,176
Unsettled investment sales — 9,589
Premiums, net of allowance of $1,811,713 and $1,041,000 at December 31, 2015 and

2014, respectively 25,933,023 33,600,779
Pharmacy rebate receivable 11,676,387 10,107,027
Other, net 25,366,193 25,375,553

Total current assets 398,126,187 481,604,516

Noncurrent assets:
Office equipment 4,281,159 5,244,203
Less accumulated depreciation (1,583,203) (3,457,200) 

Office equipment, net 2,697,956 1,787,003

Total assets 400,824,143 483,391,519

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension amounts 1,645,058 572,776

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,645,058 572,776
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 402,469,201 483,964,295

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Health and dental reserves $ 112,486,000 108,063,000
Life reserves 5,515,000 6,275,000
Disability reserves 3,004,000 3,019,103
Premium deficiency reserve 43,966,000 54,331,462
Premiums due to health maintenance organizations and other insurers 8,819,181 9,117,171
Payable for investment purchases 1,392,129 506,666
Other accrued liabilities 15,471,176 21,997,973

Total current liabilities 190,653,486 203,310,375

Noncurrent liabilities:
Disability reserves 9,125,000 10,435,897
Net pension liability 1,352,338 754,986

Total liabilities 201,130,824 214,501,258

Commitments and contingencies (note 15)

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension amounts 1,880,237 2,773,089

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,880,237 2,773,089

Fund Equity

Invested in capital assets 2,697,956 1,787,003
Unrestricted (note 2(f)) 196,760,184 264,902,945

Total fund equity 199,458,140 266,689,948
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund equity $ 402,469,201 483,964,295

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
(A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)

Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Equity

Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014

Operating revenue:
Premium revenue $ 979,663,600 941,358,109
Other operating revenue 123,231 936,685

Total operating revenue 979,786,831 942,294,794

Operating expenses:
Incurred claims expense 1,015,375,127 929,382,378
Change in premium deficiency reserve (10,365,462) 43,434,586
Administrative and claim processing 46,955,893 50,027,600

Total operating expenses 1,051,965,558 1,022,844,564

Operating loss (72,178,727) (80,549,770) 

Nonoperating revenue:
Net investment income 4,946,919 22,137,347

Change in fund equity (67,231,808) (58,412,423) 

Fund equity, beginning of year 266,689,948 329,133,050
Cumulative effect of adopting new accounting standard (note 2(p)) — (4,030,679) 

Fund equity, beginning of year restated 266,689,948 325,102,371
Fund equity, end of year $ 199,458,140 266,689,948

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT
(A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Premiums collected $ 973,020,970 924,618,142
Premiums collected on behalf of health maintenance organizations and other

insurers 119,084,766 119,904,019
Payments collected from Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 13,474,283 13,664,985
Risk adjustment premium collected 159,708 977,927
Benefits paid (1,014,607,487) (913,892,815) 
Premiums paid to health maintenance organizations and other insurers (118,546,673) (119,943,989) 
Payments to employees for services (9,166,916) (9,485,323) 
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (45,180,861) (30,992,578) 
Other operating cash paid (27,097) (17,479,777) 

Net cash used in operating activities (81,789,307) (32,629,409) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activity:
Acquisition of office equipment (1,413,648) (598,410) 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activity (1,413,648) (598,410) 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (312,146,612) (171,969,826) 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 393,593,840 189,905,179
Investment income received 3,783,484 2,733,087

Net cash provided by investing activities 85,230,712 20,668,440

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 2,027,757 (12,559,379) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 88,321,322 100,880,701
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 90,349,079 88,321,322

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Operating loss $ (72,178,727) (80,549,770) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 502,695 165,024
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Premium receivable 7,667,756 (3,473,745) 
Prepaid premiums 601,236 180,183
Net pension liability 597,352 (3,828,213) 
Deferred inflows of resources (892,852) (20,256) 
Deferred outflows of resources (1,072,282) 2,773,089
Other receivables (1,560,000) (16,864,848) 
Claim reserves 3,663,000 16,265,000
Disability reserves (1,326,000) (1,349,124) 
Premium deficiency reserves (10,365,462) 43,434,586
Premiums due to health maintenance organizations and other insurers (297,990) 358,793
Other liabilities (7,128,033) 10,279,872

Total adjustments (9,610,580) 47,920,361
Net cash used in operating activities $ (81,789,307) (32,629,409) 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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(1) Description of EGID 

The Employees Group Insurance Department (EGID) is a nonappropriated department of the Office of 
Management and Enterprise Services (OMES) and is a special-purpose state and local government engaged 
solely in business-type activities. EGID manages a legal trust, which administers, manages, and provides 
group health, dental, life, and disability insurance for active employees and retirees of state agencies, school 
districts, and other governmental units of the State of Oklahoma (the State). EGID is self-insured and is 
financed through premiums collected from employers and employees. The EGID retains a legal obligation 
to establish a trustee relationship whereby EGID’s funds are held for the ultimate benefit of those who obtain 
insurance from EGID. EGID provides insurance to all statutorily defined eligible employees, dependents, 
and retirees. 

The following brief description of EGID is provided for general information purposes only. Participants 
should refer to Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 1301 et seq. as amended, for more complete 
information. 

In accordance with Title 74, EGID maintains three separate programs, the Health and Dental program, the 
Life program, and the Disability program. There is no statutory restriction that would prevent assets 
accumulated in one program from paying benefits due from another program. 

Effective November 1, 2012, with the consolidation discussed below in (a), there was a change in the 
make-up of the board. There is a seven-member board, which comprises four members appointed by the 
governor, one member appointed by the speaker of the House of Representatives, one member appointed by 
the president pro tempore of the Senate, and the Oklahoma Insurance Commissioner or his designee. 

(a) General 

In 1968, EGID was formed by the State Legislature to provide group health, dental, and life benefits 
to participants of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) and active employees 
of the State. Subsequently, other groups became eligible for participation, including persons covered 
under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), survivors, and certain 
local government employees. COBRA allows temporary continuance of insurance coverage under 
certain circumstances. Survivors are individuals who were covered eligible dependents of a participant 
in EGID at the time of the participant’s death. EGID was created by the State Legislature and could 
be abolished by the same body. 

In 1978, EGID became self-insured and uses the trade name HealthChoice. Beginning in 1985, 
participants were given the option of electing health coverage from certain health maintenance 
organizations (HMOs). Plans similar to HMOs provide dental coverage for those participants who 
elect to participate in them (DMOs). In 1986, the State added a self-insured disability program 
administered by EGID. 

In 1989, participants of the Teachers’ Retirement System of Oklahoma (TRS) and active employees 
of school districts became eligible to enroll in EGID (educational participants). House Bill No. 1731, 
which provided TRS participants the option to enroll in EGID, required the TRS to transfer 
$39,600,000 to EGID. The educational participants receive the same health and dental coverage 
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options provided to state and local governmental participants. Life coverage was made available to 
active educational participants beginning July 1, 1991. Disability coverage is not available to 
educational participants. 

Effective July 1, 1993, the Oklahoma State Employee Benefit Council (EBC) began contracting with 
HMOs and DMOs on behalf of state employees to provide health and dental coverage for those 
participants who elect such coverage. 

Effective January 1, 2006, EGID’s self-funded plan HealthChoice became a Medicare Part D 
Prescription Drug Plan pursuant to the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization 
Act of 2003. 

In 2012, pursuant to House Bill 3053 and House Bill 3079, various agencies including EGID (formerly, 
the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board (OSEEGIB)) were consolidated 
as divisions within the Office of Management and Enterprise Services (formerly, the Office of State 
Finance). EGID’s duties were transferred to the Director of OMES and the newly created Oklahoma 
Employees Insurance and Benefits Board (OEIBB). Only the administrative functions of EGID were 
consolidated. The EGID funds continue to be held in trust and managed pursuant to state law for the 
benefit of its members. 

Effective November 1, 2013, EGID and the Employee Benefits Department (formerly, EBC) were 
further consolidated under the Human Capital Management Division (HCM) of OMES and EGID 
became a department within OMES. 

(b) Premiums and Participants 

The health, dental, life, and disability benefits for governmental participants are funded by monthly 
premiums paid by the State, local governmental units, OPERS, and individuals. The health, dental, 
and life benefits for educational participants are funded by monthly premiums paid by school districts, 
the TRS, and individuals. A participant may extend coverage to dependents for an additional monthly 
premium based on the coverage requested. Premiums for active state employees and their dependents 
are collected by Employee Benefits Department and remitted to EGID or other insurer elected by the 
employee. 

Premiums remitted to EGID on behalf of active state employees and their dependents for the years 
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are reported gross of a fee retained by EBD, which is equal to 
1.15% of premiums. This fee, which was approximately $3,403,000 and $3,206,000 for the years 
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, is included in administrative expenses in the 
statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. For the years ended December 31, 2015 
and 2014, premiums for local government, education, and inactive participants who have elected an 
HMO for health coverage or DMO for dental coverage are collected by EGID and remitted to the 
HMO or DMO carrier net of a fee retained by EGID of 1% of premiums. This fee, which was 
approximately $1,189,000 and $1,207,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively, is included as an offset to administrative expenses in the statements of revenue, expenses, 
and changes in fund equity. The premium related to HMOs, DMOs, and vision plans was 
approximately $118,249,000 and $120,303,000 for 2015 and 2014, respectively, and, as EGID only 
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acts in an agency capacity, the premiums collected on behalf of HMOs, DMOs, and vision plans are 
not reflected in the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. 

Pursuant to the authority granted by Oklahoma Statute, EGID has the authority to establish and change 
HealthChoice premium rates for the members, employers, and other contributing entities each year. 
An outside consultant advises EGID regarding changes in premium rates. If premium rates are 
changed, they generally become effective at the beginning of the next calendar year. Each HMO, 
DMO, and vision plan determines its own premium rates. 

At the time of premium payment, the risk of loss due to incurred benefit costs is transferred from the 
participant to EGID. If the assets of EGID were to be exhausted, participants would not be responsible 
for EGID’s liabilities. 

At December 31, 2015, EGID’s self-funded health plan HealthChoice provided health coverage to 133 
state agency divisions with approximately 25,000 primary participants (not including dependents), 600 
educational entities with approximately 55,000 primary participants, 308 local government entities 
with approximately 8,000 primary participants, and 36 other groups, which include the governmental 
and educational retirement systems, COBRA, and survivors, with approximately 39,000 primary 
participants. Approximately 60,000 dependents participated in HealthChoice as well. In addition, 
EGID collected and remitted premiums for approximately 24,000 primary participants and 17,000 
dependents who were covered by HMOs. These counts are provided for health coverage only. 

At December 31, 2014, EGID’s self-funded health plan HealthChoice provided health coverage 132 
state agency divisions with approximately 23,000 primary participants (not including dependents), 594 
educational entities with approximately 52,000 primary participants, 305 local government entities 
with approximately 8,000 primary participants, and 36 other groups, which include the governmental 
and educational retirement systems, COBRA, and survivors, with approximately 39,000 primary 
participants. Approximately 55,000 dependents participated in HealthChoice as well. In addition, 
EGID collected and remitted premiums for approximately 27,000 primary participants and 20,000 
dependents who were covered by HMOs. These counts are provided for health coverage only. 

All state agencies in Oklahoma are required to offer to their active employees the coverage selections 
offered by EBD. All eligible education or local government entities may elect to participate in EGID. 
Any education entity or local government entity, which elects to withdraw from offering EGID as an 
insurance option may do so with 30 days written notice and must withdraw both its current and former 
employee participants. 

(c) Benefits 

A provider Network arrangement is available for health and dental benefits. According to this 
arrangement, Network providers agree to accept amounts for covered services that do not exceed the 
charges allowed by EGID. Therefore, the Network provider can only expect to receive payment from 
the participant for the charges allowed by the Network agreement. 

HealthChoice offers a high, basic, High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP), and USA option health 
benefit plan for non-Medicare participants. A member who elects the high option plan is responsible 



33

EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT 
(A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 and 2014 

 15 (Continued) 

for a $30 copayment for primary care physician or $50 copayment for specialist and no deductible for 
office visits and preventive care services when using Network providers. The same services when 
using non-Network providers are reimbursed at 50% after the member meets a $500 calendar year 
deductible. For other services, Network provider and non-Network provider benefits are generally 
reimbursed at 80% and 50%, respectively, after the appropriate deductibles of $500 ($1,500 per 
family). HealthChoice reimburses allowed charges at 100% once the member has reached $3,300 and 
$3,800 per member out-of-pocket maximum for Network providers and non-Network providers, 
respectively. 

The basic option plan pays 100% of the first $500 of allowed charges for covered medical services. 
The member pays 100% of the next $1,000 ($1,500 per family) of allowed charges. The member and 
HealthChoice each pay 50% of the next $4,000 of allowed charges ($9,000 per family). HealthChoice 
reimburses allowed charges at 100% once the member has reached the out-of-pocket maximum of 
$4,000 ($9,000 per family). 

To enroll or remain enrolled in the HealthChoice high or basic option, the member must attest that he 
and his covered dependents are tobacco-free by completing an attestation as part of the annual Option 
Period enrollment process. If the member cannot complete the tobacco-free attestation because he or 
his dependents are not tobacco-free, he can still qualify for the high or basic option if they can provide 
proof of an attempt to quit using tobacco by enrolling in the quit tobacco program available through 
the Oklahoma Tobacco Helpline and Alere Wellbeing and completing three coaching calls or provide 
a letter from his doctor indicating it is not medically advisable for him or his dependent to quit tobacco. 
If a member cannot complete the tobacco-free attestation or one of the reasonable alternatives 
described, he will automatically be enrolled in the HealthChoice High Alternative or Basic Alternative 
Plan and the annual deductible and out-of-pocket limit will be $250 higher. 

In addition, for both plans, when using non-Network providers, the member is responsible for the 
excess of billed charges over allowed charges. 

The HealthChoice HDHP option is a qualified, high deductible health plan that can be used in 
combination with a Health Savings Account. A member who selects the high deductible plan must 
meet a deductible of $1,500 ($3,000 per family) before any benefits are paid by the plan. Additional 
deductibles of $300 for each non-Network hospital confinement and $100 for each emergency room 
visit apply. After deductibles are met, the member is responsible for the same copayments and 
coinsurance percentages as the high option plan. There is a Network out-of-pocket limit of $3,000 per 
individual or $6,000 per family, after which HealthChoice pays 100% of allowed charges for covered 
services from a Network provider. 

A HealthChoice USA option is offered to active participants who work outside Oklahoma and 
Arkansas for more than 90 consecutive days and to non-Medicare retired participants who live outside 
those two states. These members have the same benefits as the HealthChoice high option, but they 
access a nation-wide provider Network. 

For all HealthChoice plans, certain preventive services are covered at 100% of allowable fees when 
using a Network provider. 
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Pharmacy benefits are the same for the high, high alternative, basic, and basic alternative plans. 
Medications are categorized as generic, Preferred brand name, non-Preferred brand name, Preferred 
Specialty, or non-Preferred Specialty. When purchasing generic medications from a Network provider, 
the member is responsible for up to a $10 copay for up to a 30-day supply or up to a $25 copay for a 
31-90 day supply of medication. For up to a 30-day supply of Preferred brand name medications, the 
member is responsible for up to $45. For a 31-90 day supply of Preferred brand name medications, the 
member is responsible for up to $90. For up to a 30-day supply of non-Preferred brand name 
medications, the member is responsible for up to $75. For a 31-90 day supply of non-Preferred brand 
name medications, the member is responsible for up to $150. All Specialty medications are covered 
for up to a 30-day supply and only when ordered through Accredo Health. The member is responsible 
for a $100 copay for Preferred Specialty medications, and $200 for non-Preferred Specialty 
medications. Certain prescription medications for smoking cessation are available at a $0 copayment. 
In addition, there is an annual $2,500 individual/$4,000 family out-of-pocket maximum, for which 
only generic and Preferred medications purchased at Network Pharmacies apply. There is no 
out-of-pocket maximum for non-Preferred medications or medications purchased at non-Network 
pharmacies. 

For non-Network providers, the member is responsible for 50% of the cost of the medication, plus the 
dispensing fee for Preferred medications, and 75% of the cost of the medication, plus the dispensing 
fee for non-Preferred medications. 

If a brand-name medication is chosen when a generic is available, the member is responsible for the 
difference in cost between the brand-name medication and the generic, in addition to the applicable 
copay. This applies to all commercial plans, as well as all Medicare with and without Part D plans. 

Allowed expenses for HealthChoice dental benefits are reimbursed at a percentage ranging from 60% 
to 100%, based on the class of the allowed expense, when using Network providers. The same services 
when using a non-Network provider are reimbursed at a percentage ranging from 50% to 100%. There 
is a $25 deductible ($75 per family) when using either Network or non-Network providers. There is a 
calendar year maximum dental benefit of $2,500 per covered person. 

HealthChoice basic life benefits of $20,000 are provided to active state, education, and local 
government employees. In addition to the basic life benefit of $20,000, participants may elect 
additional coverage in increments of $20,000 up to $500,000. Additional dependent life coverage is 
also available under three separate plans. The low option plan offers dependent life coverage of $6,000 
for spouses and $3,000 for children. The standard option plan offers dependent life coverage of 
$10,000 for spouses and $5,000 for children. The premier option offers dependent life coverage of 
$20,000 for spouses and $10,000 for children. 

Retirees may elect to retain the full coverage for basic life benefits held at the time of termination of 
employment. Coverage thereafter may be decreased in $5,000 increments to a minimum of $5,000 or 
totally terminated. Prior to July 1, 2002, no more than $15,000 of basic life insurance could be retained 
after termination of employment. The retiree may retain dependent life coverage in force on eligible 
dependents in $500 increments. 



35

EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT 
(A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 and 2014 

 17 (Continued) 

HealthChoice disability benefits are based on the length of employment, base salary limited by a 
maximum allowable salary, and length of disability. There is a 30-day qualifying period for short-term 
disability. Long-term disability becomes effective 180 days after disablement. Income from other 
sources is used to reduce the benefit amount. The duration of the long-term benefit is determined based 
upon the age of the participant at disablement and length of employment. 

A high option and low option HealthChoice Medicare supplement benefit plan is available to those 
retired participants and their dependents who are eligible to enroll in Medicare, where Medicare is the 
primary payor. This coverage provides for reimbursement of Medicare-eligible expenses, which may 
not be fully covered by or which exceed the amount allowed by Medicare. Medicare Part A expenses 
are generally reimbursed at 100% of eligible Medicare expenses not reimbursed by Medicare. The 
Medicare Part A deductible is also fully reimbursed by HealthChoice. Medicare Part B expenses are 
generally reimbursed at 20% of eligible Medicare expenses not reimbursed by Medicare. 

EGID has adopted Plan “G modified” for medical benefits for both the high option and low option 
plans in accordance with the National Association of Insurance Commissioners’ schedule of Medicare 
supplement plans, with the addition of a pharmacy prescription program, preventive care benefits, 
out-of-country benefits, and an at-home recovery benefit. 

Pharmacy benefits for the HealthChoice High Option Medicare Supplement Plan are very similar to 
the HealthChoice High Option Plan. The High Option with Part D copay structure is the same as the 
copay structure for the High Option Plan, with the exception of Specialty medications. The High 
Option with Part D Plan does not have a non-Preferred Specialty medication copay and all Specialty 
medications have a $100 copay. High Option with Part D plan members who reach total drug costs of 
$2,960 receive a 50% discount toward their copay costs when purchasing covered brand-name 
medications. There are also a few minor differences in the formulary. The low option Medicare 
supplement plan is modeled after the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) standard Part 
D plan design. Once a participant reaches catastrophic coverage, EGID pays 100% of the pharmacy 
cost rather than 95% per CMS’ standard Part D plan design. In addition, HealthChoice Low Option 
with Part D members who reach total drug costs of $2,960 receive a 55% discount on the cost of 
covered brand-name medications, and HealthChoice pays 35% of the cost of generic medications. 

Health benefits and dental benefits are provided directly by the HMOs and DMOs for all participants 
who elect such coverage. For each participant who elects HMO or DMO coverage, excluding active 
state employees, EGID collects and pays the premiums to each HMO or DMO carrier. For each active 
state employee who elects HMO or DMO coverage, EBD collects and pays the premiums to each 
HMO or DMO carrier. The amounts paid by EGID to each HMO or DMO are in accordance with their 
respective contracts. Benefits are the responsibility of each HMO or DMO carrier and are subject to 
the provisions defined in their insurance policies. EGID has no liability for health benefits or dental 
benefits of participants who elect HMO or DMO coverage; therefore, activity related to HMO, DMO, 
and vision benefits are not reflected in the basic financial statements of EGID. 

All benefits for HealthChoice are processed and paid by third-party administrators (TPAs). The fees 
incurred by EGID for services performed by the TPAs totaled approximately $22,754,000 and 
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$21,754,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. TPA fees are included in 
administrative expenses in the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. 

A summary of available coverage and eligible groups for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 
is as follows: 

Local
State Education government

employee employee employee OPERS TRS COBRA

Health X X X X X X
Dental X X X X X X
Life X X X X X
Disability X
Medicare supplement X X X X

 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Accounting 

EGID’s basic financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles as they apply to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles. 

(b) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience 
and other factors, including the current economic environment, which management believes to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. EGID adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and 
circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual 
results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those estimates resulting from 
continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial statements in future 
periods. 

(c) Investments and Investment Income 

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted prices with changes in fair value included in the 
statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. If quoted prices are not available from 
active exchanges for identical instruments, then fair values are estimated using quoted prices from less 
active markets, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or by pricing models utilizing 
other significant observable inputs. Investments in external investment pools, such as commingled 
funds, are stated at fair value based on actual transaction values. There was no difference in the fair 
value and the net asset value in the pool of shares in the commingled fund at December 31, 2015 and 
2014. 
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EGID records investment purchases and sales based upon the trade date. Therefore, EGID records 
either receivables or payables for unsettled sales or purchases, respectively. Such transactions are 
usually settled within a few days after the trade date. 

Realized gains and losses are determined on the average-cost method. The calculation of realized gains 
and losses is independent of the calculation of the change in net unrealized gains and losses. Realized 
gains and losses on investments that had been held in more than one year and sold in the current year 
may have been recognized as unrealized gains and losses in prior years. 

Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date. 

(d) Office Equipment 

Office equipment is recorded at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives of the equipment, which range from 5 to 10 years. Purchases of equipment costing less than 
$2,500 are considered to be immaterial and are expensed when purchased. 

(e) Reserves 

EGID establishes HealthChoice health and dental and life reserves based on the ultimate estimated 
cost of settling claims that have been reported but not settled, and of claims that have been incurred 
but not yet reported. HealthChoice disability reserves are also established based on the estimated 
ultimate cost of settling claims of participants currently receiving benefits and for disability claims 
incurred but not yet reported to EGID. Long-term disability reserves are carried at the present value of 
expected future benefits. The reserves are determined using EGID’s historical benefit payment 
experience. These estimates are based on data available at the time of estimate and are reviewed by 
EGID’s independent consulting actuaries. The health, dental, and life reserves and the disability 
reserves include liabilities for claim processing expenses associated with paying claims, which have 
been incurred, but not yet paid. The length of time for which costs must be estimated depends on the 
coverage involved. 

Although reserves reflect EGID’s best estimates of the incurred claims to be paid, due to the complex 
nature of the factors involved in the calculation, the actual results may be more or less than the 
estimate. The claim reserves are recomputed on a periodic basis using actuarial and statistical 
techniques, which consider the effects of general economic conditions, such as inflation, and other 
factors of past experience, such as changes in participant counts. Adjustments to claim reserves are 
recorded in the periods in which they are made. Claims must be filed no later than the last day of the 
calendar year immediately following the calendar year in which the loss is sustained unless an 
extenuating circumstance can be shown to exist. 

Premium deficiency reserves are required to be recorded when the anticipated costs of settling claims 
plus policy maintenance costs for the following fiscal year are in excess of the anticipated premium 
receipts and investment income for the following fiscal year. 
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(f) Fund Equity 

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, EGID has no legally required minimum fund equity. However, EGID 
has elected to set a benchmark for minimum fund equity based upon the National Association of 
Insurance Commissioners (NAIC), the Managed Care Organizations Risk Based Capital Formula for 
the Health and Dental program, and the NAIC Life/Health Risk Based Capital Formula for the Life 
and Disability programs. EGID utilizes the NAIC Risk Based Capital methodology to establish the 
fund equity benchmark. The minimum fund equity benchmark by EGID at December 31, 2015 and 
2014 is approximately $195,393,000 and $184,473,000, respectively. 

The NAIC Risk Based Capital Formulas were selected as the basis for determining minimum fund 
equity primarily due to the following factors: 

 Degree and nature of the risks undertaken 

 Size of EGID 

 Degree of conservatism inherent in the premium rates 

 Degree of safety desired 

The primary risks that would threaten EGID’s solvency include the following: 

 The risk that claims incurred will exceed premiums collected 

 The risk of default or decline in value of EGID’s assets 

 The risk of large monetary judgments stemming from possible lawsuits against EGID 

A comparison of the minimum fund equity benchmark by EGID and unrestricted fund equity at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014 as reported in the basic financial statements is as follows (in thousands): 

2015
Total

Minimum fund equity $ 195,393   
Unrestricted fund equity 196,760   

 

2014
Total

Minimum fund equity $ 184,473   
Unrestricted fund equity 264,903   

 

As part of the rate setting process, EGID considers total fund equity in comparison with the minimum 
fund equity benchmark in setting rates toward achieving the minimum fund equity benchmark. Title 
74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Section 1321C provides that EGID may adjust rates mid-year if the need 
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is substantiated by an actuarial determination. Consistent with prior years, EGID does not anticipate 
the need for a mid-year rate adjustment for 2016. 

(g) Premiums 

Premiums are recognized in the period when the insurance coverage is provided. Premiums are due 
monthly from the employers or participants based on the rates adopted by EGID. 

(h) Medicare Part D Subsidies 

As a Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Plan (PDP), EGID receives a monthly payment from 
Medicare. The effect of these payments is to subsidize premiums for the individuals enrolled in the 
PDP since they pay a reduced premium rate. This amount is approximately $13,474,000 and 
$13,664,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and is included in 
premium revenue within the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. 

Additionally, Medicare pays EGID a catastrophic reinsurance subsidy as a cost reimbursement for 
80% of the claim costs incurred by individuals in excess of the individual annual out-of-pocket 
maximum. A settlement is made based on actual cost experience subsequent to the end of the year. 
EGID accrued approximately $18,811,000 and $14,636,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively, and is included in other, net in the balance sheets. 

(i) Pharmacy Rebate 

Effective January 1, 1999, under EGID’s agreement with its pharmacy benefit manager, EGID 
receives a guaranteed rebate for each non-Medicare Part D prescription. Effective January 1, 2006, 
EGID also receives a specified percentage of manufacturers’ rebates received by the pharmacy benefit 
manager related to Medicare Part D prescriptions. This amount is approximately $15,169,000 and 
$13,271,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and is included as an 
offset to incurred claims expense within the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund 
equity. 

(j) Risk Adjustment Premiums 

Risk adjustment premiums are received from HMOs based on factors, which are applied to premiums 
remitted to HMOs for all non-Medicare primary members during the plan year; the factors are intended 
to offset any adverse selection that may occur to EGID as a result of younger, healthier members 
electing HMO coverage. This amount is approximately $74,000 and $931,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and is included in other operating revenue within the 
statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. 

(k) Administrative Expenses 

Administrative expenses are primarily related to employees of EGID and professional services, 
including fees paid to TPAs to process and pay benefits. 
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EGID does not record deferred acquisition costs since administrative expenses are primarily 
maintenance expenses and not acquisition expenses. EGID maintains a budget; however, it is not a 
legally adopted annual budget. 

(l) Transitional Reinsurance Fees 

The Affordable Care Act (ACA) was signed into law on March 23, 2010. Several significant new 
provisions were enacted in 2014, including the Transitional Reinsurance Program. The federal 
government sponsors a Transitional Reinsurance Program designed to stabilize the Individual 
insurance marketplace during the first three years of the new ACA Exchange initiative. 

To fund this program, all Commercial health insurance companies and employers providing 
self-insured plans are required to pay an annual per member fee ($44 and $63 in 2015 and 2014, 
respectively), which decreases over the three-year transition period. A portion of the annual funding 
(17%–25%) is apportioned to the Treasury Department. The remainder is used to fund covered claims. 

EGID accrues the estimated amount of the annual fees based on projected current year membership, 
which is submitted to the federal government in November of each year. The claim funding portion of 
the fee is payable in January of the following year. The Treasury portion is payable in November of 
the following year. The transitional reinsurance fees are accounted for as federal assessment fees in 
administrative and claims processing in the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund 
equity. 

EGID accrued approximately $6,575,000 and $8,877,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively, for the payment of Transitional Reinsurance fees due in 2016 and is included in other 
accrued liabilities in the balance sheets. 

(m) Income Taxes 

EGID obtained its latest determination letter dated March 30, 2005, in which the Internal Revenue 
Service stated that income from the exercise of the essential governmental functions of EGID is exempt 
from federal income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code). 

(n) Operating Revenue and Expenses 

Balances classified as operating revenue and expenses are those, which comprise the EGID’s principal 
ongoing operations. Since EGID’s operations are similar to those of any other insurance company, 
most revenue and expenses are considered operating. 

(o) Pension 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Plan (the Plan), and additions to/deductions 
from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
the Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
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recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 

(p) Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 
(GASB 68). The objective of this statement is to improve the accounting and financial reporting by 
state and local governments for pensions. This Statement establishes standards for measuring and 
recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and 
expense/expenditure. For defined benefit pensions, this Statement identifies the methods and 
assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to 
their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. In financial 
statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting, 
a cost-sharing employer that does not have a special funding situation is required to recognize a 
liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. EGID adopted GASB 68 in 2015 and 
presented the cumulative effect of applying GASB 68 as a restatement of beginning fund balance as 
of January 1, 2014. The impact of this adoption was a cumulative effect of $4,030,679 on 2014 
beginning of the year fund equity. 

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-09, Financial Services – Insurance: Disclosures about 
Short-Duration Contracts. ASU 2015-09 expands the disclosures an insurance entity would provide 
about its short duration contracts. The disclosure about the liability for unpaid claims and claim 
adjustment expenses is intended to increase the transparency of significant estimates made in the 
measuring of those liabilities and provide insight into an insurance entity’s ability to underwrite and 
anticipate costs associated with claims. The amended guidance is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2016 and for interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2017. The guidance affects disclosures only and will not impact EGID’s results of operations or 
financial position. 

(q) Prior Year Classifications 

Certain 2014 balances have been reclassified to conform to 2015 presentation. 

(3) Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820, Fair Value of Measurement, requires EGID to disclose 
estimated fair values for its financial instruments. Fair value estimates are made at a point in time, based on 
relevant market data as well as the best information available about the financial instruments. Fair value 
estimates for financial instruments for which no or limited observable market data is available are based on 
judgments regarding current economic conditions, credit and interest rate risk, and loss experience. These 
estimates involve significant uncertainties and judgments and cannot be determined with precision. As a 
result, such calculated fair value estimates may not be realizable in a current sale or immediate settlement of 
the instrument. In addition, changes in the underlying assumptions used in the fair value measurement 
technique, including discount rate and estimates of future cash flows, could significantly affect these fair 
values. Fair value estimates, methods, and assumptions at December 31, 2015 and 2014 are described below 
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for EGID’s financial instruments. The carrying value of all EGID’s financial instruments approximates fair 
value. 

In accordance with guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures, EGID groups its financial assets 
and liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, based on inputs and assumptions used to determine the 
fair value. An asset’s or liability’s classification within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level 
of significant input to its valuation. The levels are as follows: 

 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical securities. 

 Level 2 inputs are other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar securities, 
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, etc.). 

 Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs (including the EGID’s own assumptions used to 
determine the fair value of investments). 

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets are at fair value for investment securities. Fair values 
for debt securities are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted prices are not available from 
active exchanges for identical instruments, the fair values are estimated using quoted prices from less active 
markets, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or by pricing models utilizing other 
significant observable inputs. The debt securities fair values are considered Level 2. The fair values for equity 
securities are based on quoted market prices and are considered Level 1. 

The carrying values of the receivable for unsettled investment sales, premiums receivable, interest and 
dividends receivable, pharmacy rebate receivable, other receivables, premiums due to HMOs and other 
insurers, payable for investment purchases, and other accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to the 
short maturity of these financial instruments and the fact that they do not present undue credit concerns and 
are considered Level 2. 

(4) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash includes amounts on deposit with the Office of State Treasurer (State Treasurer) in a pooled account, 
which is required by the Oklahoma Statutes to be insured or collateralized. The amount of collateral securities 
required to be pledged to secure public deposits is established by rules and regulations promulgated by the 
State Treasurer. In accordance with the State Treasurer’s policies, the market value of collateral securities to 
be pledged by financial institutions through the State Treasurer’s Office must be 110% of the carrying value 
of the amount on deposit, less any federal insurance coverage. 

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, cash totaling $32,799,000 and $59,695,000, respectively, was deposited 
with and collateralized by the official bond of the State Treasurer of Oklahoma. 

The carrying amount and bank balance of the cash equivalents totaled $57,550,000 and $28,626,000 at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and consists of an investment in a mutual fund composed of 
short-term investments with an original maturity date of three months or less, which are readily convertible 
into cash. The current duration of the underlying investments in the money market mutual fund is 
approximately 37 days. 
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Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, EGID’s deposits may not be 
returned or EGID may not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. 
EGID’s cash and cash equivalents include deposits that are insured, registered, or for which the securities 
are held by a custodian in EGID’s name. 

(5) Investments 

EGID’s investment policy is predicated on a multiple manager structure to provide the benefits of more than 
one manager’s special skills and a diversity of investment styles. Upon recommendation of the OEIBB, 
external managers are appointed to assume the investment management function. The managers, within 
guidelines determined by EGID’s Board, have full discretion to buy and sell investment assets of EGID. 
Authorized investments are defined in Title 36 of the Oklahoma Statutes, as amended, and EGID’s 
investment policy, and include U.S. government obligations, state and district obligations, corporate 
obligations, mortgage-backed and assets-backed debt securities, and Preferred and common stock. All 
investments held by EGID are in compliance with statutes and the investment policy. 
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As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, EGID had the following investments: 

2015 2014
Types of investments Fair values Duration (1) Fair values Duration (1)

Debt securities:
Commingled fund $ —    — $ 95,310,791   3.89
Asset-backed securities(2) 9,399,090   1.71 5,145,861   0.92
Agencies 12,576,987   4.78 33,396,712   3.70
Corporate 63,440,423   5.57 36,190,466   6.07
Mortgages 13,851,444   3.66 10,804,255   3.01
Collateralized mortgage

obligations(2) 1,173,221   1.24 2,067,731   1.52
U.S. Treasuries 39,710,383   9.79 8,850,601   9.42
Municipals 725,102   1.32 1,336,111   11.72
USD denominated foreign

government 721,134   8.44 1,709,554   7.83
Collateralized mortgage-backed

securities (CMBS)(2) 8,025,628   4.25 5,894,133   3.72
Certificates of Deposit (CDs) 2,200,538   3.06 1,941,070   1.29

Total debt securities 151,823,950   202,647,285   

Equities:
Domestic 91,833,593   120,809,785   

Total investments $ 243,657,543   $ 323,457,070   
(1) Interest rate risk is estimated using effective duration (in years).
(2) These include investments highly sensitive to interest rate changes.
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(a) Credit Risk 

The credit risk profile as listed by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s for debt securities and money market 
mutual funds at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as follows: 

2015
Aaa Aa/A Baa/Ba Ccc Not rated Total

Debt securities:
Asset-backed securities $ 8,447,133  39,816  912,141  —  —  9,399,090  
Agencies 12,052,312  —  524,675  —  —  12,576,987  
Corporate 1,083,959  23,571,328  38,741,886  43,250  —  63,440,423  
Mortgages 13,851,444  —  —  —  —  13,851,444  
Collateralized mortgage

obligations 853,229  128,084  191,908  —  —  1,173,221  
U.S. Treasuries 39,710,383  —  —  —  —  39,710,383  
Municipals —  725,102  —  —  —  725,102  
USD denominated foreign

government 721,134  —  —  —  —  721,134  
CMBS 7,255,603  94,530  519,167  —  156,328  8,025,628  
CDs 2,200,538  —  —  —  —  2,200,538  

Total debt
securities $ 86,175,735  24,558,860  40,889,777  43,250  156,328  151,823,950  

Money market mutual funds $ —  —  —  —  57,550,492  57,550,492  
 

2014
Aaa Aa/A Baa/Ba Ccc Not rated Total

Debt securities:
Commingled fund (1) $ —  —  —  —  95,310,791  95,310,791  
Asset-backed securities 4,292,550  853,311  —  —  —  5,145,861  
Agencies 33,396,712  —  —  —  —  33,396,712  
Corporate 8,099,475  19,482,586  8,608,405  —  —  36,190,466  
Mortgages 10,804,255  —  —  —  —  10,804,255  
Collateralized mortgage

obligations 1,836,541  —  —  231,190  —  2,067,731  
U.S. Treasuries 8,850,601  —  —  —  —  8,850,601  
Municipals 1,336,111  —  —  —  —  1,336,111  
USD denominated foreign

government —  1,709,554  —  —  —  1,709,554  
CMBS 5,894,133  —  —  —  —  5,894,133  
CDs —  —  —  —  1,941,070  1,941,070  

Total debt
securities $ 74,510,378  22,045,451  8,608,405  231,190  97,251,861  202,647,285  

Money market mutual funds $ —  —  —  —  28,626,404  28,626,404  

(1) There is no rating on the commingled fund; however, the average rating of the underlying investments in the commingled fund as
provided by the fund manager is Aa at December 31, 2014.

 

Credit risk is the risk an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
The Board’s investment policy authorizes EGID to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies 
and instrumentalities, bankers’ acceptances rated AA or better, commercial paper rated A-1 or P-1 and 
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A-2 or P-2, fixed income investments rated investment grade and stocks of companies with a minimum 
capitalization of $50,000,000, and other investments of similar risk. 

Investments in “restricted securities,” including fixed income securities, preferred stock, common 
stock, or any common stock acquired upon conversion thereof are prohibited. “Restricted securities” 
are securities, which have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and are subject to 
restrictions on sale. Engagements in short sales, purchases on margin, or investments in commodities 
or transactions of a similar or speculative nature are prohibited. EGID is in compliance with its 
investment policy for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. 

(b) Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
EGID will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in the possession 
of an outside party. The current master custodian has been approved by EGID’s Board. EGID’s 
investments include investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by a 
custodian in EGID’s name. They may also include investments held for the custodian by the Federal 
Reserve Bank or Depository Trust Corporation in EGID’s name. 

(c) Concentration of Credit Risk 

An increased risk of loss occurs as more investments are acquired from one issuer. EGID’s policy 
states investments in one issuer shall not exceed 2.5% of the fair value of each manager’s assets, except 
for obligations of the U.S. government or of any state of the U.S. The policy also restricts investments 
in the common stock of any U.S. corporation to no more than 5% of each manager’s assets valued at 
the lower of cost or market value, except where the manager’s benchmark holds more than 5% in a 
single issue or with prior consent of EGID’s Board. 

(d) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Fixed income investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate 
changes. 
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(e) Investment Income 

Net investment income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 comprises the following: 

2015 2014

Fixed income securities $ 4,666,868   2,962,201   
Equity securities 238,820   320,099   
Realized gains 22,354,552   9,089,036   
Unrealized (loss) gain (21,601,556)  10,372,607   
Other investment loss (347)  (1,070)  
Less investment expenses (711,418)  (605,526)  

Net investment income $ 4,946,919   22,137,347   
 

(6) Office Equipment 

The changes in office equipment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows: 

2015 2014

Office equipment, at cost:
Balance, beginning of year $ 5,244,203   4,708,483   

Additions 1,413,648   598,410   
Retirements (2,376,692)  (62,690)  

Balance, end of year 4,281,159   5,244,203   

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance, beginning of year 3,457,200   3,354,866   

Depreciation expense 502,695   165,024   
Retirements (2,376,692)  (62,690)  

Balance, end of year 1,583,203   3,457,200   
Office equipment, net $ 2,697,956   1,787,003   
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(7) Health and Dental and Life Reserves 

The following represents changes in the Health and Dental and Life Reserves during the year ended 
December 31, 2015 (in thousands): 

Health
and Dental Life Total

Reserves, beginning of year $ 108,063   6,275   114,338   

Incurred claims expense provisions for
insured events of the current year 986,857   27,503   1,014,360   

Changes in provisions for insured events
of prior years (1,518)  738   (780)  

985,339   28,241   1,013,580   
Less payments:

Claims expense insured events of the
current year 878,100   24,593   902,693   

Claims expense insured events of
prior years 102,816   4,408   107,224   

980,916   29,001   1,009,917   
Reserves, end of year $ 112,486   5,515   118,001   

 

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision for claims decreased by 
approximately $780,000 in the year ended December 31, 2015, due primarily to favorable health and dental 
claims development. 
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The following represents changes in the Health and Dental and Life Reserves during the year ended 
December 31, 2014 (in thousands): 

Health
and Dental Life Total

Reserves, beginning of year $ 91,003   7,070   98,073   

Incurred claims expense provisions for
insured events of the current year 908,574   25,615   934,189   

Changes in provisions for insured events
of prior years (7,795)  791   (7,004)  

900,779   26,406   927,185   

Less payments:
Claims expense insured events of the

current year 804,541   22,064   826,605   
Claims expense insured events of

prior years 79,178   5,137   84,315   

883,719   27,201   910,920   
Reserves, end of year $ 108,063   6,275   114,338   

 

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision for claims decreased by 
approximately $7,004,000 in the year ended December 31, 2014, due primarily to favorable development on 
Medicare catastrophic reinsurance subsidy of approximately $13,393,000 less adverse development of 
approximately $6,389,000 on health and dental claims development. 
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(8) Disability Reserves 

The following represents changes in the disability reserves during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 
2014 (in thousands): 

2015 2014

Reserves, beginning of year $ 13,455  14,804  

Incurred claims:
Provisions for insured events of the current year 4,564  4,604  
Changes in provisions for insured events of prior years (2,769) (2,407) 

1,795  2,197  

Payments:
Claims attributable to insured events of the current year 735  629  
Claims attributable to insured events of prior years 2,386  2,917  

3,121  3,546  
Reserves, end of year $ 12,129  13,455  

 

EGID estimates current and noncurrent reserves for disability reserves based on historical claim experience. 

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision for disability reserves 
decreased by approximately $2,769,000 and $2,407,000 in the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively, due primarily to favorable claims development. 

The following is a brief description of the significant assumptions used for disability reserves: 

 Actual claim experience for the group, based upon claim lag studies, was used for males and females 
for short-term disability. 

 The 2012 Group Long-term Disability Valuation Table was used. 

 The discount rate was 3.5% for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. 

(9) Premium Deficiency Reserve 

A premium deficiency reserve is recorded at the end of the year when the anticipated costs of settling claims 
plus policy maintenance costs for the following year are in excess of the anticipated premium receipts and 
investment income for the following year. Anticipated premium receipts are projected based on the premium 
rates adopted by EGID for the following plan year and current enrollment levels. Incurred claims for 
subsequent years are projected based on current year incurred claims, increased for anticipated inflation rates 
and benefit design changes. EGID does not have the intention to change the adopted premium rates after the 
fiscal year has begun. For 2015, a premium deficiency for the health and dental plans was booked in the 
amount of approximately $40,677,000 and $3,289,000, respectively. For 2014, a premium deficiency for the 
health and dental plans was booked in the amount of approximately $53,916,000 and $304,000, respectively. 
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For the disability plan, at December 31, 2015, no premium deficiency was necessary. At December 31, 2014, 
a premium deficiency of approximately $111,000 was booked. 

(10) General Information About the Pension Plan 

Plan description. EGID contributes to the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Plan, a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer public employee retirement system administered by the Oklahoma Public Employees 
Retirement System (OPERS). The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members 
and beneficiaries. The benefit provisions are established and may be amended by the legislature of the State 
of Oklahoma. Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 901-943, as amended, assigns the authority for 
management and operation of the Plan to the Board of Trustees of OPERS. OPERS issues a publicly 
available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
for the Plan. That annual report may be obtained by writing to OPERS, P.O. Box 53007, Oklahoma City, 
Oklahoma 73152 or at www.opers.ok.gov/. 

Benefits Provided. Members qualify for full retirement benefits at their specified normal retirement age or, 
for any person who became a member prior to July 1, 1992, when the sum of the member’s age and years of 
credited service equals or exceeds 80 (Rule of 80), and for any person who became a member after June 30, 
1992, when the member’s age and years of credited service equals or exceeds 90 (Rule of 90). 

Normal retirement date is further qualified to require that all members employed on or after January 1, 1983 
must have six or more years of full-time equivalent employment with a participating employer before being 
eligible to receive benefits. Credited service is the sum of participating and prior service. Prior service 
includes nonparticipating service before January 1, 1975, or the entry date of the employer and active 
wartime military service. 

A member with a minimum of ten years of participating service may elect early retirement with reduced 
benefits beginning at age 55 if the participant became a member prior to November 1, 2011, or age 60 if the 
participant became a member on or after November 1, 2011. 

Disability retirement benefits are available for members having eight years of credited service whose 
disability status has been certified as being within one year of the last day on the job by the Social Security 
Administration. Disability retirement benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits, but 
are payable immediately without an actuarial reduction. 

Contributions. Plan members and EGID are required to contribute at a rate set by statute. The contribution 
requirements of plan members and EGID are established and may be amended by the legislature of the State 
of Oklahoma. The contribution rate for EGID and plan members is as follows: 

Employee Employer
rate rate

January 1, 2015−December 31, 2015 3.5% 16.5%
January 1, 2014−December 31, 2014 3.5 16.5
July 1, 2013−December 31, 2013 3.5 16.5
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EGID’s contributions to the Retirement Plan for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were 
approximately $1,075,000 and $1,127,000, respectively, and were equal to EGID’s required contributions 
for the year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, EGID reported a liability of approximately $1,352,000 and $755,000, 
respectively, for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured 
as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
based on the employer contributing entity’s percentage of the total employer contributions for the years 
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, EGID’s proportion was approximately 0.376 and 
0.411%, respectively. 

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, EGID recognized pension (benefit) expense of 
approximately $(293,000) and $51,000, respectively. At December 31, 2015, EGID reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
outflows of inflows of
resources resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ —    150,362   
Changes of assumptions 21,039   —    
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments 1,116,448   1,729,875   
EGID contributions subsequent to the measurement date 507,571   —    

$ 1,645,058   1,880,237   

 
At December 31, 2014, EGID reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
outflows of inflows of
resources resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ —    249,956   
Changes of assumptions 43,204   —    
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on

pension plan investments —    2,523,133   
EGID contributions subsequent to the measurement date 529,572   —    

$ 572,776   2,773,089   

 
$507,571 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from EGID contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
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ended December 31, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31:
2016 $ (399,405)  
2017 (323,451)  
2018 (299,006)  
2019 279,113   

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 and 2014 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Inflation 3
Salary increases 4.5% to 8.4%, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Active/Retired Healthy Mortality Table projected to 
2010 using Scale AA (disabled members were set forward 15 years).

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 and 2014 valuation were based on the results of the 
most recent actuarial experience study, which covered the three-year period ending June 30, 2013.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation 
and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following 
table:

Long-term
Target expected real

Asset class allocation rate of return

U.S. Large Cap Equity 38.0% 5.3%
U.S. Small Cap Equity 6.0 5.6
U.S. Fixed Income 25.0 0.7
International Stock 18.0 5.6
Emerging Market Stock 6.0 6.4
TIPS 3.5 0.7
Rate Anticipation 3.5 1.5

Total 100.0%
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Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and the 
employers will be made at the current contribution rate as set out in state statute. Based on those assumptions, 
the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected through 2114 to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. The discount rate determined does not use a municipal bond rate. 

Sensitivity of EGID’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The 
following presents EGID’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 7.5%, as well as what EGID’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.5%) or one percentage point higher (8.5%) than 
the current rate: 

2015
1% Decrease Discount rate 1% Increase

(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
EGID’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) $ 5,039,156   1,352,338   (1,782,043)  

 

2014
1% Decrease Discount rate 1% Increase

(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)

EGID’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) $ 4,700,361   754,986   (2,599,149)  

 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is available 
in the separately issued OPERS financial report. 

(11) Deferred Compensation Plan 

The State offers to its own employees, state agency employees, and other duly constituted authority or 
instrumentality employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457 and Chapter 45 of Title 74, Oklahoma Statutes. The Oklahoma State Employees Deferred 
Compensation Plan (SoonerSave) is a voluntary plan that allows participants to defer a portion of their salary 
into SoonerSave. Participation allows a person to shelter the portion of their salary that they defer from 
current federal and state income tax. Taxes on the interest or investment gains on this money, while in 
SoonerSave, are also deferred. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, 
retirement, death, or approved unforeseeable emergency. 

Under SoonerSave, the untaxed deferred amounts are invested as directed by the participant among various 
investment options. Effective January 1, 1998, a Trust and Trust Fund covering SoonerSave assets was 
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established pursuant to federal legislation enacted in 1996, requiring public employers to establish such trusts 
for plans meeting the requirements of Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code. Under terms of the Trust, 
the corpus or income of the Trust Fund may be used only for the exclusive benefit of SoonerSave participants 
and their beneficiaries. Further information may be obtained from the Oklahoma State Employees Deferred 
Compensation Plan audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015. EGID believes it has no 
liabilities with respect to SoonerSave. 

(12) Compensated Absences 

It is EGID’s policy to accrue compensated absences for annual leave, including the related employer’s share 
of social security and Medicare taxes, in accordance with state statute, not to exceed one of the following: 

 240 hours for employees with continuous service of less than five years 

 480 hours for employees with continuous service of five years or more 

During 2015, EGID’s liability for compensated absences increased by approximately $89,000 for 83 
employees, decreased by approximately $159,000 for 64 employees, and did not change for 20 employees. 

During 2014, EGID’s liability for compensated absences increased by approximately $127,000 for 85 
employees, decreased by approximately $97,000 for 60 employees, and did not change for 17 employees. 

EGID’s liability for compensated absences at December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to approximately 
$748,000 and $818,000, respectively, and is included in other accrued liabilities in the balance sheets. 

(13) Operating Leases 

EGID has agreements for one-year commitments to lease office space and equipment with options to renew 
for additional periods. If the leases are renewed in accordance with the options in the agreements, the future 
minimum rentals for operating leases as of December 31, 2015 are as follows: 

2016 $ 619,222   
2017 254,486   
2018 123,858   

$ 997,566   
 

Rent expense for office space and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was 
approximately $868,000 and $652,000, respectively, and is included in administrative expenses in the 
statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. 

(14) Risks and Uncertainties 

EGID invests in various investment securities. As described in note 5, investment securities are exposed to 
various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. It is at least reasonably possible that changes in 
the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect the 
amounts reported in the balance sheets. 
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As described in note 2, the estimates of reserves are determined based on actuarial and statistical techniques, 
which considers the effects of general economic conditions, such as inflation, and other factors of past 
experience, such as changes in participant counts, all of which are subject to change. Due to uncertainties 
inherent in the estimation and assumption process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these 
estimates and assumptions in the near term would be material to the financial statements. 

(15) Commitments and Contingencies 

EGID’s legal counsel has determined that the statute of limitations for claims denied or paid improperly is 
three years. Typically, all claims are reported within a 24-month period. Currently, EGID is not aware of 
any material claims that were denied or paid improperly that should be reserved for in the basic financial 
statements. To the extent such claims exist, EGID may be responsible for payment. 

During 2003, the Oklahoma Legislature created the Medical Expense Liability Revolving Fund (the Fund), 
which enacted a fee to cover inmate medical costs. By law, EGID is the administrator of the Fund. Any 
person convicted of certain offenses is required to pay a fine of $10, which goes into the Fund. The moneys 
from the Fund are used when an inmate’s medical costs exceed $6,000 up to a maximum of $100,000. As of 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Fund has assets and liabilities of approximately $891,000 and $3,312,000, 
respectively, which are included in cash and other accrued liabilities in the balance sheets. 

During 1995, the Oklahoma Legislature created the Health Insurance High Risk Pool (the Pool), which was 
designed to provide health insurance for certain state residents who were unable to obtain coverage through 
other insurers. All insurers and reinsurers providing health insurance or reinsurance in the state of Oklahoma 
were required to participate in the Pool. With the exception of EGID, all self-insured plans were exempted 
from participation. Participating insurers were assessed periodically. Participating insurers were also 
assessed additional amounts in the Pool experienced adverse claim development. In 2014, this law was 
repealed with an effective date of January 1, 2017. No assessments were made in 2015. For the year ended 
December 31, 2014, EGID recorded assessments totaling approximately $2,206,000, which were included 
in administrative expense in the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. 

In the normal course of operations, there are various legal actions and proceedings pending against EGID. 
In management’s opinion, the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from these legal actions will not have a 
material adverse effect on EGID’s financial position, results of operations, or liquidity. 

(16) Subsequent Events 

EGID has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date through May 13, 2016, the date at which 
the financial statements were available to be issued, and determined there are no other items to disclose. 
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2015 2014

EGID’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.37597945% 0.41129259%

EGID’s proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 1,352,338   754,986   

EGID’s covered-employee payroll 6,646,436   6,968,066   
EGID’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as a

percentage of its covered-employee payroll 20.35% 10.83%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability 96.00   97.90   

 

* This schedule is required to show information for 10 years. However, only fiscal years 2015 and 2014 are 
presented as the information for prior years is not available. 

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 1,096,662   1,149,731   
Contributions in relation to the contractually required

contribution (1,096,662)  (1,149,731)  
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ —    —    

EGID’s covered-employee payroll $ 6,646,436   6,968,066   
Contributions as a percentage of cover-employee payroll 16.50% 16.50%

 

* This schedule is required to show information for 10 years. However, only fiscal years 2015 and 2014 are 
presented as the information for prior years is not available. 

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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(1) Changes of Benefit Terms 

The plan has been amended by House Bill 2630 in 2014, which states that effective November 1, 2015, 
OPERS shall create a defined contribution plan for most people first employed by a participating employer. 
Exemptions from the new defined contribution plan include hazardous duty members and district attorneys, 
assistant district attorneys, and employees of the district attorney’s office. Each employer shall send to 
OPERS the difference between the required employer contribution to OPERS and the amount required to 
match the participating employee’s contributions in the defined contribution plan. 

Senate Bill 2120, also enacted in 2014, amends House Bill 2630 to further exempt from the new defined 
contribution plan county elected officials and employees of a county, county hospital, city or town, 
conservation district, circuit engineering district, and any public or private trust in which a county, city, or 
town participates. Senate Bill 2120 also states that employees who participate in the defined contribution 
system are excluded from the $105 healthcare subsidy. 

New employees specifically exempted from the defined contribution plan will participate in the existing 
defined benefit plan. 

(2) Changes of Assumptions 

As a result of the most recent experience study, the following assumptions were revised. 

 Withdrawal rates 

 Disability rates 

 Retirement rates 

 Salary scale assumptions 

 Probability of electing a vested benefit assumption 
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Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories

Last Ten Years

HealthChoice High
   Current Employees 

Year Employee Spouse One Child Two or More Children

CY 2015 
CY 2014 
CY 2013 
CY 2012
CY 2011
CY 2010
CY 2009
CY 2008
CY 2007
CY 2006

$499.42
484.87
463.99
449.48
449.48
442.80
409.12
364.24 
364.24
310.46

$676.28
675.82
681.96
668.10
682.74
625.88
587.92
496.61
554.18
450.22

$253.56
246.17
235.57
228.20
228.20
228.32
199.98
181.44
189.04
157.10

$391.20
379.81
363.45
352.08
352.08
342.44
343.10
290.22
298.60
250.40

HealthChoice High
   Former Employees Under Age 65

 Year Employee Spouse One Child Two or More Children

CY 2015 
CY 2014 
CY 2013 
CY 2012
CY 2011
CY 2010
CY 2009
CY 2008
CY 2007
CY 2006

$499.42
484.87
463.99
449.48
449.48
442.80
409.12
364.24
364.24
400.46

$676.28
675.82
681.96
668.10
682.74
625.88
587.92
496.61
554.18
583.68

$253.56
246.17
235.57
228.20
228.20
228.32
199.98
181.44
189.04
157.10

$391.20
379.81
363.45
352.08
352.08
342.44
343.10
290.22
298.60
250.40

HealthChoice High
   Former Employees Ages 65 and Over

 Year Employee Spouse One Child Two or More Children

CY 2015 
CY 2014 
CY 2013 
CY 2012
CY 2011
CY 2010
CY 2009
CY 2008
CY 2007
CY 2006

$307.28
323.38
316.34
332.54
332.54
289.42
279.28
245.80
245.80
245.80

$307.28
323.38
316.34
332.54
308.34
289.42
279.28
245.80
245.80
245.80

$307.28
323.38
316.34
332.54
308.34
289.42
279.28
245.80
245.80
245.80

$307.28
323.38
316.34
332.54
616.68
578.84
558.56
491.60
491.60
491.60

CY - Calendar Year          

Table 6A

68



Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories

Last Ten Years

HealthChoice Basic/Low
   Current Employees

Year Employee Spouse One Child Two or More Children

CY 2015 
CY 2014 
CY 2013 
CY 2012
CY 2011
CY 2010
CY 2009
CY 2008
CY 2007
CY 2006

$391.52
421.11
402.98
391.64
391.64
384.22
347.96
318.18
318.18
269.22

$501.74
594.78
593.32
571.84
598.48
546.84
503.74
425.65
491.20
388.18

$215.94
217.00
207.66
201.82
201.82
200.36
171.56
155.32
165.14
135.18

$342.74
334.19
319.80
310.80
310.80
300.88
586.88
248.88 
262.08
215.46

HealthChoice Basic/Low
   Former Employees Under Age 65

Year Employee Spouse One Child Two or More Children

CY 2015 
CY 2014 
CY 2013 
CY 2012
CY 2011
CY 2010
CY 2009
CY 2008
CY 2007
CY 2006

$391.52
421.11
402.98
391.64
391.64
384.22
347.96
318.18
318.18
359.22

$501.74
594.78
593.52
571.84
598.48
546.84
503.74
425.65
491.20 
504.90 

$215.94
217.00
207.66
201.82
201.82
200.36
171.56
155.32
165.14 
135.18 

$342.74
334.19
319.80
310.80
310.80
300.88
586.88
248.88
262.08
215.46

HealthChoice Basic/Low
   Former Employees Ages 65 and Over

Year Employee Spouse One Child Two or More Children

CY 2015 
CY 2014 
CY 2013 
CY 2012
CY 2011
CY 2010
CY 2009
CY 2008
CY 2007
CY 2006

$239.90
261.84
255.62
273.02
251.66
236.10
222.92
197.32
197.32
197.32

$239.90
261.84
255.62
273.02
251.66
236.10
222.92
197.32
197.32
197.32

$239.90
261.84
255.62
273.02
251.66
236.10
222.92
197.32
197.32
197.32

$239.90
261.84
255.62
273.02
503.32
472.20
445.84
394.64
394.64
394.64

CY - Calendar Year   

Table 6B
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Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories

Last Ten Years

HealthChoice Dental  
Year Employee Spouse One Child Two or More Children

CY 2015 
CY 2014 
CY 2013 
CY 2012
CY 2011
CY 2010
CY 2009
CY 2008
CY 2007
CY 2006

$32.00
31.38
31.38
30.20
29.84
30.28
28.58
26.80
26.80
26.80

$32.00
31.38
31.38
30.20
29.84
30.28
28.58
26.80
26.80
26.80

$27.40
26.90
26.90
25.18
24.88
25.24
23.82
22.34
26.80
22.34

$68.20
66.96
66.96
65.32
64.56
65.50
61.84
57.98
57.98
57.98

 
HealthChoice Basic Life     

Year Employee

CY 2015 
CY 2014 
CY 2013 
CY 2012
CY 2011
CY 2010
CY 2009
CY 2008
CY 2007
CY 2006

$4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.56
4.56
3.50
3.90
3.90
3.90

HealthChoice Disability
Year Employee

CY 2015 
CY 2014 
CY 2013 
CY 2012
CY 2011
CY 2010
CY 2009
CY 2008
CY 2007
CY 2006

$9.10
9.10
9.10
9.10
9.10
9.10
7.62
7.54
7.54
6.28

CY - Calendar Year          

Table 6C
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CY 2015 CY 2014 CY 2013

CommunityCare
GlobalHealth

CommunityCare
GlobalHealth

CommunityCare
GlobalHealth

CY 2012 CY 2011 CY 2010

CommunityCare
GlobalHealth

UnitedHealthcare

CommunityCare
GlobalHealth

PacifiCare/UnitedHealthcare

Aetna
CommunityCare

GlobalHealth
PacifiCare

CY 2009 CY 2008 CY 2007

Aetna
CommunityCare

GlobalHealth
PacifiCare

Aetna
CommunityCare

GlobalHealth
PacifiCare

Aetna
ASITricare Supplement

CommunityCare
GlobalHealth

PacifiCare

CY 2006

Aetna
ASITricare Supplement

CommunityCare
GlobalHealth

PacifiCare

CY - Calendar Year          

Outside Insurance Carriers - Health

(Offered in Addition to the HealthChoice Self-insured Plan) Table 7A
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CY 2015 CY 2014 CY 2013

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

CY 2012 CY 2011 CY 2010

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

CY 2009 CY 2008 CY 2007

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

CY 2006

Assurant Dental
CIGNA Dental

Delta Dental

CY - Calendar Year         

Outside Insurance Carriers - Dental

(Offered in Addition to the HealthChoice Self-insured Plan) Table 7B
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CY 2015 CY 2014 CY 2013

Humana/CompBenefits VisionCare
Primary Vision Care Services

Superior Vision Plan
UnitedHealthcare Vision

Vision Care Direct
Vision Service Plan

Humana/CompBenefits VisionCare
Primary Vision Care Services

Superior Vision Plan
UnitedHealthcare Vision

Vision Care Direct
Vision Service Plan

Humana/CompBenefits VisionCare
Primary Vision Care Services

Superior Vision Plan
UnitedHealthcare Vision

Vision Service Plan

CY 2012 CY 2011 CY 2010

Humana/CompBenefits VisionCare
Primary Vision Care Services

Superior Vision Plan
UnitedHealthcare Vision

Vision Service Plan

Humana/CompBenefits VisionCare
Primary Vision Care Services

Superior Vision Plan
UnitedHealthcare Vision

Vision Service Plan

CompBenefits VisionCare
Primary Vision Care Services

Spectera Vision
UnitedHealthcare Vision Plan

Vision Service Plan

CY 2009 CY 2008 CY 2007

CompBenefits VisionCare
Primary Vision Care Services

Spectera Vision
Superior Vision Plan
Vision Service Plan

CompBenefits VisionCare
Primary Vision Care Services

Spectera Vision
Superior Vision Plan
Vision Service Plan

CompBenefits VisionCare
Primary Vision Care Services

Spectera Vision
Superior Vision Plan
Vision Service Plan

CY 2006

CompBenefits
Primary Vision Care Services

Spectera Vision
Superior Vision Plan
Vision Service Plan

CY - Calendar Year     

Outside Insurance Carriers - Vision Table 7C

73








	Structure Bookmarks
	Document
	Article
	Artifact
	Employees Group 
	Employees Group 
	Employees Group 
	Insurance Department


	Comprehensive Annual
	Comprehensive Annual
	Comprehensive Annual

	Financial Report
	Financial Report

	Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015
	Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015


	Artifact
	Perpetual Motion Dance
	Perpetual Motion Dance
	Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
	Photograph courtesy of Perpetual Motion Dance

	Office of Management and Enterprise Services
	Office of Management and Enterprise Services
	Employees Group Insurance Department
	Employees Group Insurance Department


	Comprehensive 
	Comprehensive 
	Comprehensive 

	Annual 
	Annual 

	Financial 
	Financial 

	Report
	Report


	Year Ended 
	Year Ended 
	Year Ended 

	Dec. 31, 2015
	Dec. 31, 2015


	Prepared by EGID Finance
	Prepared by EGID Finance
	Prepared by EGID Finance


	This publication was printed by the Office of Management and Enterprise Services as authorized by Title 62, Section 34. 8 
	This publication was printed by the Office of Management and Enterprise Services as authorized by Title 62, Section 34. 8 
	This publication was printed by the Office of Management and Enterprise Services as authorized by Title 62, Section 34. 8 
	copies have been printed at a cost of $13.94. A copy has been submitted to Documents.OK.gov in accordance with the Oklahoma 
	State Government Open Documents Initiative (62 O.S., 2012, § 34.11.3). This work is licensed under a Creative Attribution-
	NonCommercial-NoDerivs 3.0 Unported License.


	Table of Contents
	Table of Contents
	Table of Contents


	Introductory Section
	Introductory Section
	Introductory Section
	Introductory Section
	Introductory Section
	Introductory Section
	Introductory Section



	.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1-15
	.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1-15
	.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1-15
	Letter of Transmittal  – Includes exhibits 1–5
	Letter of Transmittal  – Includes exhibits 1–5




	.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  16
	.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  16
	.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  16
	Executive Organizational Chart
	Executive Organizational Chart




	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  17
	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  17
	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  17
	List of Principal Officials
	List of Principal Officials




	Financial Section
	Financial Section
	Financial Section
	Financial Section



	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  19-20
	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  19-20
	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  19-20
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Independent Auditors’ Report




	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  21-26
	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  21-26
	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  21-26
	Management’s Discussion and Analysis
	Management’s Discussion and Analysis




	TR
	TD
	Text_Times_NR_16_Ita
	Span
	Basic Financial Statements



	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  27
	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  27
	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  27
	Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
	Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014




	Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
	Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
	Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
	Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
	Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund


	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  28
	Equity for the Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
	Equity for the Years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014




	Statements of Cash Flows for the 
	Statements of Cash Flows for the 
	Statements of Cash Flows for the 
	Statements of Cash Flows for the 
	Statements of Cash Flows for the 


	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 29
	Years ended December 31, 2015
	Years ended December 31, 2015
	 and 2014




	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  30-59
	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  30-59
	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  30-59
	Notes to Basic Financial Statements
	Notes to Basic Financial Statements




	Statistical Section
	Statistical Section
	Statistical Section
	Statistical Section
	     


	Table No
	Table No
	Table No
	.



	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  61
	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  61
	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 1  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  61
	Fund Equity
	Fund Equity




	  .  .  .  . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2  .  .  .  .  .  .  62-63
	  .  .  .  . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2  .  .  .  .  .  .  62-63
	  .  .  .  . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2  .  .  .  .  .  .  62-63
	Change in Fund Equity
	Change in Fund Equity




	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 64
	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 64
	  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 64
	Operating Revenues by Type of Entity
	Operating Revenues by Type of Entity




	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 65
	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 65
	 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 65
	Top Ten Sources of Premium Revenue
	Top Ten Sources of Premium Revenue




	Demographic Statistics for Health Coverage
	Demographic Statistics for Health Coverage
	Demographic Statistics for Health Coverage
	Demographic Statistics for Health Coverage
	Demographic Statistics for Health Coverage


	.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  5A-5B  .  .  .  .  .66-67
	Number and Type of Participants
	Number and Type of Participants




	Monthly Premiums by 
	Monthly Premiums by 
	Monthly Premiums by 
	Monthly Premiums by 
	Monthly Premiums by 


	  .  .  .  .  . 6A-6C  .  .  .  .  .68-70
	Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Coverage Type and Billing Categories




	 . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7A-7C  .  .  .  .  .71-73
	 . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7A-7C  .  .  .  .  .71-73
	 . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7A-7C  .  .  .  .  .71-73
	Outside Insurance Carriers
	Outside Insurance Carriers







	SectionIntroductory
	SectionIntroductory

	Sept. 30, 2016
	Sept. 30, 2016
	Sept. 30, 2016


	To the citizens of the State of Oklahoma:The comprehensive annual financial report for the Office of Management and Enterprise Services Employees Group Insurance Department (EGID) for the fiscal year ended Dec. 31, 2015, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of EGID. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are
	To the citizens of the State of Oklahoma:The comprehensive annual financial report for the Office of Management and Enterprise Services Employees Group Insurance Department (EGID) for the fiscal year ended Dec. 31, 2015, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of EGID. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are
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	HealthChoice ParticipationHMO Participation
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	StateCurrent
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	EducationMedicare
	EducationMedicare
	EducationMedicare


	StateMedicare
	StateMedicare
	StateMedicare


	StatePre-Medicare
	StatePre-Medicare
	StatePre-Medicare


	EducationPre-Medicare
	EducationPre-Medicare
	EducationPre-Medicare


	LocalGovernment
	LocalGovernment
	LocalGovernment


	During the year ended Dec. 31, 2015, participants could choose between HealthChoice and four, federally qualified health maintenance organizations (HMO) during their initial enrollment. Each HMO requires participants to reside or work within a designated service area, which consists primarily of the Oklahoma City and Tulsa metropolitan areas, but have expanded to rural parts of Oklahoma as provider networks have been established. HealthChoice has no such restriction and is thus available to all eligible par
	During the year ended Dec. 31, 2015, participants could choose between HealthChoice and four, federally qualified health maintenance organizations (HMO) during their initial enrollment. Each HMO requires participants to reside or work within a designated service area, which consists primarily of the Oklahoma City and Tulsa metropolitan areas, but have expanded to rural parts of Oklahoma as provider networks have been established. HealthChoice has no such restriction and is thus available to all eligible par
	During the year ended Dec. 31, 2015, participants could choose between HealthChoice and four, federally qualified health maintenance organizations (HMO) during their initial enrollment. Each HMO requires participants to reside or work within a designated service area, which consists primarily of the Oklahoma City and Tulsa metropolitan areas, but have expanded to rural parts of Oklahoma as provider networks have been established. HealthChoice has no such restriction and is thus available to all eligible par
	Total Primary ParticipantsHealthChoice and HMOYear Ended Dec. 31, 2015


	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 1
	Among the current primary members, approximately 19 percent were covered by the HMO plans at Dec. 31, 2015. For the Medicare and pre-Medicare populations, approximately 9 percent were covered by the HMO plans at Dec. 31, 2015. Each year during the months of October and November, participants can change their coverage elections for the next year. All carrier changes and coverage elected during this period will be effective from Jan. 1 until Dec. 31 of the same year.EGID, by statute, provides insurance covera
	insurance. The employee also has 30 days after acquiring a new dependent to add that dependent to coverage. After this period, an employee may still add dependents during the aforementioned annual Option Period. Coverage could be delayed, however, if the dependent has been dropped in the past 12 months. A current employee who leaves employment can add or retain certain insurance coverage depending on his status at the end of his employment. A former employee can also add or continue dependent coverage that 

	Available Coverage by Participant GroupStateEmployeesEducationEmployeesLocalGovernmentEmployeesOK PublicEmployeesRetirement SystemTeachers’RetirementSystemSurvivorsCOBRAHealth4444444Dental4444444Life444444Disability44MedicareSupplement4444
	Available Coverage by Participant GroupStateEmployeesEducationEmployeesLocalGovernmentEmployeesOK PublicEmployeesRetirement SystemTeachers’RetirementSystemSurvivorsCOBRAHealth4444444Dental4444444Life444444Disability44MedicareSupplement4444
	Available Coverage by Participant GroupStateEmployeesEducationEmployeesLocalGovernmentEmployeesOK PublicEmployeesRetirement SystemTeachers’RetirementSystemSurvivorsCOBRAHealth4444444Dental4444444Life444444Disability44MedicareSupplement4444
	Available Coverage by Participant GroupStateEmployeesEducationEmployeesLocalGovernmentEmployeesOK PublicEmployeesRetirement SystemTeachers’RetirementSystemSurvivorsCOBRAHealth4444444Dental4444444Life444444Disability44MedicareSupplement4444
	Available Coverage by Participant GroupStateEmployeesEducationEmployeesLocalGovernmentEmployeesOK PublicEmployeesRetirement SystemTeachers’RetirementSystemSurvivorsCOBRAHealth4444444Dental4444444Life444444Disability44MedicareSupplement4444
	Available Coverage by Participant GroupStateEmployeesEducationEmployeesLocalGovernmentEmployeesOK PublicEmployeesRetirement SystemTeachers’RetirementSystemSurvivorsCOBRAHealth4444444Dental4444444Life444444Disability44MedicareSupplement4444
	Available Coverage by Participant GroupStateEmployeesEducationEmployeesLocalGovernmentEmployeesOK PublicEmployeesRetirement SystemTeachers’RetirementSystemSurvivorsCOBRAHealth4444444Dental4444444Life444444Disability44MedicareSupplement4444






	ECONOMIC OUTLOOKThe economic issues facing the state, its agencies and school districts, other participating groups, and their employees are a key consideration when EGID sets premium rates. The board and EGID administration are very aware that increases in premiums affect the already tight budgets of participating groups, as well as individual members. Alternatives to rate increases such as changes in copays or deductibles must be considered, especially when groups are facing budget cuts. EGID is faced wit
	ECONOMIC OUTLOOKThe economic issues facing the state, its agencies and school districts, other participating groups, and their employees are a key consideration when EGID sets premium rates. The board and EGID administration are very aware that increases in premiums affect the already tight budgets of participating groups, as well as individual members. Alternatives to rate increases such as changes in copays or deductibles must be considered, especially when groups are facing budget cuts. EGID is faced wit

	According to the 2016 Segal Health Plan Cost Trend Survey, health benefit plan cost trend rates for 2016 are forecast to increase for most medical plan options and increase substantially for prescription drug coverage to double-digit rates. The survey goes on to say prescription drug price inflation is approaching double digits, more than 10 times the rate of overall consumer price index (CPI) for all goods and services. The survey states prescription drugs account for 20 to 25 percent of total health care 
	According to the 2016 Segal Health Plan Cost Trend Survey, health benefit plan cost trend rates for 2016 are forecast to increase for most medical plan options and increase substantially for prescription drug coverage to double-digit rates. The survey goes on to say prescription drug price inflation is approaching double digits, more than 10 times the rate of overall consumer price index (CPI) for all goods and services. The survey states prescription drugs account for 20 to 25 percent of total health care 
	MAJOR INITIATIVESIn an effort to secure member’s confidential information and cut costs, beginning with plan year 2017, HealthChoice members can access their Explanation of Benefits (EOB) via a secure website and opt out of receiving paper EOBs. HealthChoice network providers and non-network providers will also have online access to their remittance advices via secure website or via a standard HIPAA transaction. Beginning Jan. 1, 2016, HealthChoice introduced a new program called HealthChoice Select that wi
	In an effort to reduce the risk of exposing confidential member information and to reduce printing and mailing costs, EGID implemented two significant changes to the employer group monthly billing statements. By making these changes, EGID is proactively reducing the risk of identity theft for covered individuals, employers and to EGID itself. The first change was implemented April 1, 2016. That change removed Social Security numbers from the billing statements and replaced them with Member ID codes. The sec
	In September 2015, EGID implemented a health care decision support system. This integrated analytic database provides advanced analysis and reporting capabilities that will support the effective management of the HealthChoice insurance plans. The system enables informed and timely decision-making in areas such as plan design and modeling, early identification of trends, and measurement of program effectiveness.  EGID continues to research the possibility of joining a coalition of other Oklahoma health care 
	of inpatient and MH/SU tiers has also helped to assure the reimbursement is consistent with the provider contract terms no matter the claim submission type. The HealthChoice H.E.L.P. 4 program began in plan year 2011 as a wellness initiative for primary members ages 20 and older enrolled in the HealthChoice High, Basic and S-Account plans. The primary goals of H.E.L.P. 4 included:• Placing attention on face-to-face interaction between the member and their primary care physician.• Using preventive medicine i
	• Beginning in 2014, the Transitional Reinsurance Fee under ACA imposed an annual fee on group health plans, including EGID. The established rate for 2014 was $63 per covered life, $44 per covered life for 2015, and $27 per covered life for 2016.• Beginning Jan. 1, 2014, ACA imposed annual limits on the amount an enrollee in a non-grandfathered plan must pay for essential health benefits through cost sharing. The deadline was modified to Jan. 1, 2015, for plans, such as EGID, that use a separate combination
	• Beginning in 2014, the Transitional Reinsurance Fee under ACA imposed an annual fee on group health plans, including EGID. The established rate for 2014 was $63 per covered life, $44 per covered life for 2015, and $27 per covered life for 2016.• Beginning Jan. 1, 2014, ACA imposed annual limits on the amount an enrollee in a non-grandfathered plan must pay for essential health benefits through cost sharing. The deadline was modified to Jan. 1, 2015, for plans, such as EGID, that use a separate combination
	• Beginning in 2014, the Transitional Reinsurance Fee under ACA imposed an annual fee on group health plans, including EGID. The established rate for 2014 was $63 per covered life, $44 per covered life for 2015, and $27 per covered life for 2016.• Beginning Jan. 1, 2014, ACA imposed annual limits on the amount an enrollee in a non-grandfathered plan must pay for essential health benefits through cost sharing. The deadline was modified to Jan. 1, 2015, for plans, such as EGID, that use a separate combination
	• Beginning in 2014, the Transitional Reinsurance Fee under ACA imposed an annual fee on group health plans, including EGID. The established rate for 2014 was $63 per covered life, $44 per covered life for 2015, and $27 per covered life for 2016.• Beginning Jan. 1, 2014, ACA imposed annual limits on the amount an enrollee in a non-grandfathered plan must pay for essential health benefits through cost sharing. The deadline was modified to Jan. 1, 2015, for plans, such as EGID, that use a separate combination



	Oklahoma House Bill 1711 (2016) permits the Health Insurance Plan to offer an alternative insurance plan to retires under the age of 65 at a rate that is between $100 less and up to $100 more than the monthly premium for active employees. House Bill 2785 (2016) allows cities to participate in the Disability Insurance Program. House Bill 2963 (2016) requires the Health Insurance Plan to provide coverage for the screening, diagnosis and treatment of autism spectrum disorders. House Bill 3071 (2016) requires t
	House Bill 1567 (2015) permits the Health Insurance Plan to provide for the application of deductibles and copayment or coinsurance provisions that are based on contracts with providers for specific services based on levels of outcomes or cost or type of provider. House Bill 2190 (2014) requires health benefit plans to utilize prior authorization forms for obtaining any prior authorization for prescription drug benefits. The bill provides that a form cannot exceed three pages in length, excluding any instru
	FINANCIAL INFORMATIONEGID management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that assets are protected and to provide accurate accounting data. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived. The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and 
	Proprietary Operations. EGID revenue from operations consists of health, dental, life and disability premiums remitted by each participating entity for their employees, or directly by former employees and participants under COBRA. Also included in premium revenue are premium subsidies received from the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) Medicare Part D program. Another source of operating revenues is a risk adjustment fee collected from HMOs. Operational expenses are primarily paid and incurred 

	Comparison of Premiums, Paid Claims, and Incurred Claims
	Comparison of Premiums, Paid Claims, and Incurred Claims
	Comparison of Premiums, Paid Claims, and Incurred Claims

	Health Plan - Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015
	Health Plan - Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015


	Story
	Pharmacy claims are included in total health claims. For current employees, health premiums for 2015 were $30.3 million over incurred claims for the year, a difference of 5 percent. For pre-Medicare former employees, health premiums fell short of covering incurred claims by $36.1 million or 40 percent, primarily because premiums for current employees and pre-Medicare former employees are priced at a fully blended rate. For Medicare-eligible former employees, health premiums were $26.0 million over incurred 
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	The following exhibit illustrates medical and prescription drug claims for each participant category.
	The following exhibit illustrates medical and prescription drug claims for each participant category.

	Medical and Prescription Drug Paid Claims
	Medical and Prescription Drug Paid Claims
	Medical and Prescription Drug Paid Claims

	Health Plan - Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015
	Health Plan - Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015


	Medicare
	Medicare
	Medicare


	Pre-Medicare
	Pre-Medicare
	Pre-Medicare


	Current
	Current
	Current


	33%
	33%
	33%


	24%
	24%
	24%


	20%
	20%
	20%
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	Artifact
	Artifact
	76%
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	67%
	67%
	67%


	80%
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	Prescription Drug Claims
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	Medical Claims
	Medical Claims
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	For the current employee and pre-Medicare former employee population, approximately one-fifth of total paid claims are for prescription drugs. For the Medicare-eligible former employee population, nearly two-thirds of paid claims are for prescription drugs.
	For the current employee and pre-Medicare former employee population, approximately one-fifth of total paid claims are for prescription drugs. For the Medicare-eligible former employee population, nearly two-thirds of paid claims are for prescription drugs.
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	Total HealthChoice Expenses
	Total HealthChoice Expenses
	Total HealthChoice Expenses
	(1)

	Year Ended Dec. 31, 2015
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	The HealthChoice expense for payment of health, pharmacy, dental, life and disability claims was 95.5 percent. Only 4.5 percent of the department’s total expenses were for administrative costs which compares favorably with industry averages. 
	The HealthChoice expense for payment of health, pharmacy, dental, life and disability claims was 95.5 percent. Only 4.5 percent of the department’s total expenses were for administrative costs which compares favorably with industry averages. 
	 
	Cash and Investment Management. EGID maintains minimum cash balances as required by statute to fund released warrants. All excess cash is deposited with a custodial bank, which in turn credits the EGID short-term cash money market account. In addition to the money market account, EGID has two fixed income money managers and three equity securities managers.
	All invested funds are regulated by the EGID investment policy set by the Oklahoma Employees Insurance and Benefits Board (OEIBB) and monitored by EGID administration.
	The policy speaks specifically to liquidity, asset quality, maturity and duration of fixed income terms, and specific asset mix by statutory fund. In addition, the policy sets benchmark expectations for each type of money manager.
	A more detailed summary of EGID’s financial position and result of operations is included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
	OTHER  INFORMATIONIndependent Audit. The accounting firm of KPMG LLP has been retained to perform an annual audit. The independent auditors’ report on the basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this report.Acknowledgments. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the finance unit. In addition, I wish to acknowledge the contribution made by Mr. Gary Beebe, Comptroller. In closing, without the lea
	Diana O’Neal Deputy Administrator, Finance
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	Independent Auditors’Report Members of the Board Oklahoma Employees Insurance and Benefits Board: Report on the Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Employees Group Insurance Department (EGID), a department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the EGID’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of conten
	KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership, the 
	KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership, the 
	KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership, the 
	U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative 
	(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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	2Emphasis of MatterAs discussed in note 2 to the financial statements, in 2015, EGID adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Boards Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting of Pensions,effective January 1, 2014. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. Other Matters Required Supplementary Information U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require thatmanagement’s discussion and analysis on pages 21through26 and the schedules of EGID’s proportionate share of the net pensi
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Management’s Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2015 and 2014  3 (Continued) Overview of the Financial Statements The EGID basic financial statements are prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for governmental entities and insurance enterprises where applicable. The primary purpose of EGID is to provide group health, dental, life, and disability
	Story
	21

	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Management’s Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2015 and 2014  4 (Continued) Financial Highlights The management of the EGID offers readers of EGID’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the entity for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013. 2015 vs. 2014December 31Change201520142013AmountCash and investments$334,006,622  411,778,392  422,63
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Management’s Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2015 and 2014  5 (Continued) 2015 vs. 2014Year ended December 31Change201520142013AmountPremium revenue$979,663,600  941,358,109  903,192,032  38,305,491  Other operating revenue123,231  936,685  1,708,711  (813,454) Total operating revenue979,786,831  942,294,794  904,900,743  37,492,037  Incurred claims expense1,015,375,127929,382,378  873,841,859  85,99
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Management’s Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2015 and 2014  6 (Continued) $3.8 million decrease in the Medicare Part D Coverage Gap Discount Program. The increase for other current assets in 2014 of $7.2 million is primarily due to a $4.4 million increase in the Medicare Part D Coverage Gap Discount Program receivable, a $1.8 million receivable for pharmacy rebates and a $575,000 receivable from the 
	Story
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Management’s Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2015 and 2014  7 (Continued) EGID experienced a decrease in total fund equity of approximately $67.2 million, or 25.2%, for the year ended December 31, 2015. For 2014, there was a decrease in fund equity of approximately $62.4 million, or 19%. During 2015, the Health and Dental program experienced a decrease in fund equity of approximately $66.6 million, o
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Management’s Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2015 and 2014  8 According to Aon Hewitt, EGID’s consulting actuarial firm, the 2015 national healthcare trends for plans similar to the HealthChoice High plan was 2.7% for medical only, 13.4% for pharmacy only, or 5.1% combined. The national trend for Medicare supplement plans was 4.0% for medical only, 9.3% for pharmacy only, or 8.0% combined. In 2015, o
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	9EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT(A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)Balance SheetsDecember 31, 2015 and 2014Assets20152014Current assets:Cash and cash equivalents$90,349,07988,321,322Investments243,657,543323,457,070Receivables:Interest and dividends receivable1,143,962733,176Unsettled investment sales—9,589Premiums, net of allowance of $1,811,713 and $1,041,000 at December 31, 2015 and2014, respectively25,933,02333,600,779Pharmacy rebate receivable11,676,38710,107,027Othe
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	10EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT(A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund EquityYears ended December 31, 2015 and 201420152014Operating revenue:Premium revenue$979,663,600941,358,109Other operating revenue123,231936,685Total operating revenue979,786,831942,294,794Operating expenses:Incurred claims expense1,015,375,127929,382,378Change in premium deficiency reserve(10,365,462) 43,434,586Administrative and claim processing46,95
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	11EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT(A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)Statements of Cash FlowsYears ended December 31, 2015 and 201420152014Cash flows from operating activities:Premiums collected$973,020,970924,618,142Premiums collected on behalf of health maintenance organizations and otherinsurers119,084,766119,904,019Payments collected from Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services13,474,28313,664,985Risk adjustment premium collected159,708977,927Benefits paid(1,014,607
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  12 (Continued) (1) Description of EGID The Employees Group Insurance Department (EGID) is a nonappropriated department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services (OMES) and is a special-purpose state and local government engaged solely in business-type activities. EGID manages a legal trust, which administers, manages, and provides g
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  13 (Continued) options provided to state and local governmental participants. Life coverage was made available to active educational participants beginning July 1, 1991. Disability coverage is not available to educational participants. Effective July 1, 1993, the Oklahoma State Employee Benefit Council (EBC) began contracting with HMOs and DM
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  14 (Continued) acts in an agency capacity, the premiums collected on behalf of HMOs, DMOs, and vision plans are not reflected in the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. Pursuant to the authority granted by Oklahoma Statute, EGID has the authority to establish and change HealthChoice premium rates for the members, empl
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  15 (Continued) for a $30 copayment for primary care physician or $50 copayment for specialist and no deductible for office visits and preventive care services when using Network providers. The same services when using non-Network providers are reimbursed at 50% after the member meets a $500 calendar year deductible. For other services, Networ
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  16 (Continued) Pharmacy benefits are the same for the high, high alternative, basic, and basic alternative plans. Medications are categorized as generic, Preferred brand name, non-Preferred brand name, Preferred Specialty, or non-Preferred Specialty. When purchasing generic medications from a Network provider, the member is responsible for up
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  17 (Continued) HealthChoice disability benefits are based on the length of employment, base salary limited by a maximum allowable salary, and length of disability. There is a 30-day qualifying period for short-term disability. Long-term disability becomes effective 180 days after disablement. Income from other sources is used to reduce the be
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  18 (Continued) $21,754,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. TPA fees are included in administrative expenses in the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in fund equity. A summary of available coverage and eligible groups for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as follows: LocalStateEducationgover
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  19 (Continued) EGID records investment purchases and sales based upon the trade date. Therefore, EGID records either receivables or payables for unsettled sales or purchases, respectively. Such transactions are usually settled within a few days after the trade date. Realized gains and losses are determined on the average-cost method. The calc
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  20 (Continued) (f) Fund Equity At December 31, 2015 and 2014, EGID has no legally required minimum fund equity. However, EGID has elected to set a benchmark for minimum fund equity based upon the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC), the Managed Care Organizations Risk Based Capital Formula for the Health and Dental program,
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  21 (Continued) is substantiated by an actuarial determination. Consistent with prior years, EGID does not anticipate the need for a mid-year rate adjustment for 2016. (g) Premiums Premiums are recognized in the period when the insurance coverage is provided. Premiums are due monthly from the employers or participants based on the rates adopte
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  22 (Continued) EGID does not record deferred acquisition costs since administrative expenses are primarily maintenance expenses and not acquisition expenses. EGID maintains a budget; however, it is not a legally adopted annual budget. (l) Transitional Reinsurance Fees The Affordable Care Act (ACA) was signed into law on March 23, 2010. Severa
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  23 (Continued) recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. (p) Recently Issued Accounting Standards In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (GASB 68). The objective of this statement is to improve the accounting and financ
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  24 (Continued) for EGID’s financial instruments. The carrying value of all EGID’s financial instruments approximates fair value. In accordance with guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures, EGID groups its financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, based on inputs and assumptions used to determine the 
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  25 (Continued) Custodial Credit Risk Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, EGID’s deposits may not be returned or EGID may not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. EGID’s cash and cash equivalents include deposits that are insured, registered, or for whic
	Story
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  26 (Continued) As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, EGID had the following investments: 20152014Types of investmentsFair valuesDuration (1)Fair valuesDuration (1)Debt securities:Commingled fund$—    —$95,310,791   3.89Asset-backed securities(2)9,399,090   1.715,145,861   0.92Agencies12,576,987   4.7833,396,712   3.70Corporate63,440,423   5.5736,
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  27 (Continued) (a) Credit Risk The credit risk profile as listed by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s for debt securities and money market mutual funds at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as follows: 2015AaaAa/ABaa/BaCccNot ratedTotalDebt securities:Asset-backed securities$8,447,133  39,816  912,141  —  —  9,399,090  Agencies12,052,312  —  524,675  —
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  28 (Continued) A-2 or P-2, fixed income investments rated investment grade and stocks of companies with a minimum capitalization of $50,000,000, and other investments of similar risk. Investments in “restricted securities,” including fixed income securities, preferred stock, common stock, or any common stock acquired upon conversion thereof a
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  29 (Continued) (e) Investment Income Net investment income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 comprises the following: 20152014Fixed income securities$4,666,868   2,962,201   Equity securities238,820   320,099   Realized gains22,354,552   9,089,036   Unrealized (loss) gain(21,601,556)  10,372,607   Other investment loss(347)  (1,0
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  30 (Continued) (7) Health and Dental and Life Reserves The following represents changes in the Health and Dental and Life Reserves during the year ended December 31, 2015 (in thousands): Healthand DentalLifeTotalReserves, beginning of year$108,063   6,275   114,338   Incurred claims expense provisions forinsured events of the current year986,
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  31 (Continued) The following represents changes in the Health and Dental and Life Reserves during the year ended December 31, 2014 (in thousands): Healthand DentalLifeTotalReserves, beginning of year$91,003   7,070   98,073   Incurred claims expense provisions forinsured events of the current year908,574   25,615   934,189   Changes in provis
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  32 (Continued) (8) Disability Reserves The following represents changes in the disability reserves during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands): 20152014Reserves, beginning of year$13,455  14,804  Incurred claims:Provisions for insured events of the current year4,564  4,604  Changes in provisions for insured events of prio
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  33 (Continued) For the disability plan, at December 31, 2015, no premium deficiency was necessary. At December 31, 2014, a premium deficiency of approximately $111,000 was booked. (10) General Information About the Pension Plan Plan description. EGID contributes to the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employe
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  34 (Continued) EGID’s contributions to the Retirement Plan for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were approximately $1,075,000 and $1,127,000, respectively, and were equal to EGID’s required contributions for the year. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related t
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT(A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services)Notes to Basic Financial StatementsDecember 31, 2015 and 201435(Continued)ended December31, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:Year ended December 31:2016$(399,405)  2017(323,451)  2018(299,006)  2019279,113   Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June30, 201
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  36 (Continued) Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and the employers will be made at the current contribution rate as set out in state statute. Based on those assumptions, the pensio
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  37 (Continued) established pursuant to federal legislation enacted in 1996, requiring public employers to establish such trusts for plans meeting the requirements of Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code. Under terms of the Trust, the corpus or income of the Trust Fund may be used only for the exclusive benefit of SoonerSave participants a
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Basic Financial Statements December 31, 2015 and 2014  38 As described in note 2, the estimates of reserves are determined based on actuarial and statistical techniques, which considers the effects of general economic conditions, such as inflation, and other factors of past experience, such as changes in participant counts, all of which are subject to change. Due to uncertainties inherent in the 
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Schedules of Required Supplementary Information Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Plan Last 10 June 30 Fiscal Years*  39 20152014EGID’s proportion of the net pension liability0.37597945%0.41129259%EGID’s proportionate share of the net pension liability$1,352,338   754,986   EGID’s covered-employee payroll6,646,436   6,968,066   EGI
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Schedules of Required Supplementary Information Schedule of Contributions of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement Plan Last 10 June 30 Fiscal Years*  40 20152014Contractually required contribution$1,096,662   1,149,731   Contributions in relation to the contractually requiredcontribution(1,096,662)  (1,149,731)  Contribution deficiency (excess)$—    —    EGID’s covered-employee payroll$6,646,436   6,9
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	EMPLOYEES GROUP INSURANCE DEPARTMENT (A Department of the Office of Management and Enterprise Services) Notes to Required Supplementary Information Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014  41 (1) Changes of Benefit Terms The plan has been amended by House Bill 2630 in 2014, which states that effective November 1, 2015, OPERS shall create a defined contribution plan for most people first employed by a participating employer. Exemptions from the new defined contribution plan include hazardous duty members a
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	14,573

	10,883
	10,883

	25,456
	25,456

	9,889
	9,889

	21,667
	21,667

	31,556
	31,556

	169,892
	169,892

	946
	946

	141,732
	141,732

	$ 312,570
	$ 312,570


	$ 140,552
	$ 140,552
	$ 140,552

	738
	738

	73,320
	73,320

	214,610
	214,610

	14,146
	14,146

	12,429
	12,429

	26,575
	26,575

	9,104
	9,104

	19,895
	19,895

	28,999
	28,999

	163,802
	163,802

	738
	738

	105,644
	105,644

	 $ 270,184
	 $ 270,184


	 $ 133,154
	 $ 133,154
	 $ 133,154

	631
	631

	41,533
	41,533

	175,318
	175,318

	11,311
	11,311

	11,135
	11,135

	22,446
	22,446

	5,455
	5,455

	22,782
	22,782

	28,237
	28,237

	149,920
	149,920

	631
	631

	75,450
	75,450

	 $ 226,001
	 $ 226,001


	 $ 138,818
	 $ 138,818
	 $ 138,818

	609
	609

	(21,931)
	(21,931)

	117,496
	117,496

	10,370
	10,370

	7,522
	7,522

	17,892
	17,892

	5,088
	5,088

	19,569
	19,569

	24,657
	24,657

	154,276
	154,276

	609
	609

	5,160
	5,160

	  $ 160,045
	  $ 160,045


	 $ 125,046   
	 $ 125,046   
	 $ 125,046   

	710
	710

	 (57,214)
	 (57,214)

	 68,542
	 68,542

	10,086
	10,086

	10,196
	10,196

	 20,282 
	 20,282 

	4,793
	4,793

	16,826
	16,826

	 21,619 
	 21,619 

	 139,925 
	 139,925 

	 710 
	 710 

	 (30,192)
	 (30,192)

	   $ 110,443
	   $ 110,443


	  $ 120,344 
	  $ 120,344 
	  $ 120,344 

	856
	856

	 (372)
	 (372)

	 120,828 
	 120,828 

	 
	 

	10,106
	10,106

	14,670
	14,670

	 24,776 
	 24,776 

	 
	 

	5,083
	5,083

	20,803
	20,803

	 25,886 
	 25,886 

	 
	 

	 135,533 
	 135,533 

	 856 
	 856 

	 35,101 
	 35,101 

	$ 171,490
	$ 171,490


	  $ 116,936 
	  $ 116,936 
	  $ 116,936 

	1,340
	1,340

	 (2,831)
	 (2,831)

	 115,445
	 115,445

	9,399
	9,399

	11,060
	11,060

	 20,459
	 20,459

	4,485
	4,485

	22,399
	22,399

	 26,884
	 26,884

	 130,820 
	 130,820 

	 1,340 
	 1,340 

	 30,628 
	 30,628 

	$ 162,788
	$ 162,788






	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	 The 2007 and 2006 financial information has been adjusted to reflect the change in accounting principle and reporting presentation for comparability purposes.


	Health & Dental Program
	Health & Dental Program
	Health & Dental Program


	Combined Programs
	Combined Programs
	Combined Programs


	Disability Program
	Disability Program
	Disability Program


	Life Program
	Life Program
	Life Program


	61
	61
	61


	Story
	NormalParagraphStyle
	Table
	TR
	2015
	2015
	2015
	(1)(4)


	2014
	2014
	2014
	(1)(4)


	2013
	2013
	2013
	(1)(2)(6)


	2012
	2012
	2012
	(1)(2)(6)


	2011
	2011
	2011
	(1)(2)(6)


	2010
	2010
	2010
	(2)


	2009
	2009
	2009
	(2)


	2008
	2008
	2008
	(1)(3)


	2007 
	2007 
	2007 
	(1)(5)


	2006 
	2006 
	2006 
	(1)(5)



	Expenses
	Expenses
	Expenses
	Expenses



	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program



	TR
	Incurred claims expense
	Incurred claims expense
	Incurred claims expense

	Pass-through grant expense
	Pass-through grant expense

	Change in premium deficiency reserves
	Change in premium deficiency reserves

	Administrative and claim processing expense
	Administrative and claim processing expense


	$ 985,339
	$ 985,339
	$ 985,339

	-
	-

	(10,254)
	(10,254)

	44,724
	44,724


	$ 900,780
	$ 900,780
	$ 900,780

	-
	-

	43,620
	43,620

	47,686
	47,686


	843,627
	843,627
	843,627

	-
	-

	10,600
	10,600

	38,383
	38,383


	795,817
	795,817
	795,817

	-
	-

	(20,275)
	(20,275)

	36,434
	36,434


	744,550
	744,550
	744,550

	4,233
	4,233

	18,521
	18,521

	35,911
	35,911


	   749,849
	   749,849
	   749,849

	4,988
	4,988

	1,754
	1,754

	36,361
	36,361


	   792,950
	   792,950
	   792,950

	(11,915)
	(11,915)

	36,125
	36,125


	 765,931 
	 765,931 
	 765,931 

	 (12,712)
	 (12,712)

	 36,830 
	 36,830 


	 731,807 
	 731,807 
	 731,807 

	 24,627 
	 24,627 

	 39,807 
	 39,807 


	 700,005 
	 700,005 
	 700,005 

	 (9,065)
	 (9,065)

	 38,091 
	 38,091 



	       Total Health and Dental Program expense
	       Total Health and Dental Program expense
	       Total Health and Dental Program expense
	       Total Health and Dental Program expense


	1,019,809
	1,019,809
	1,019,809


	992,086
	992,086
	992,086


	892,610
	892,610
	892,610


	811,976
	811,976
	811,976


	803,215
	803,215
	803,215


	792,952
	792,952
	792,952


	817,160
	817,160
	817,160


	 790,049 
	 790,049 
	 790,049 


	 796,241 
	 796,241 
	 796,241 


	 729,031 
	 729,031 
	 729,031 



	Life Program
	Life Program
	Life Program
	Life Program



	TR
	Incurred claims expense
	Incurred claims expense
	Incurred claims expense

	Change in premium deficiency reserves
	Change in premium deficiency reserves

	Administrative and claim processing expense
	Administrative and claim processing expense


	28,241
	28,241
	28,241

	-
	-

	980
	980


	26,406
	26,406
	26,406

	-
	-

	1,035
	1,035


	26,746
	26,746
	26,746

	-
	-

	1,021
	1,021


	24,759
	24,759
	24,759

	-
	-

	987
	987


	21,934
	21,934
	21,934

	-
	-

	890
	890


	20,632
	20,632
	20,632

	-
	-

	818
	818


	23,774
	23,774
	23,774

	 -
	 -

	897
	897


	 21,005 
	 21,005 
	 21,005 

	 - 
	 - 

	 726 
	 726 


	 15,278 
	 15,278 
	 15,278 

	 - 
	 - 

	 811 
	 811 


	 17,305 
	 17,305 
	 17,305 

	 - 
	 - 

	 757 
	 757 



	       Total Life Program expense
	       Total Life Program expense
	       Total Life Program expense
	       Total Life Program expense


	29,221
	29,221
	29,221


	27,441
	27,441
	27,441


	27,767
	27,767
	27,767


	25,746
	25,746
	25,746


	22,824
	22,824
	22,824


	21,450
	21,450
	21,450


	24,671
	24,671
	24,671


	 21,731 
	 21,731 
	 21,731 


	 16,089 
	 16,089 
	 16,089 


	 18,062 
	 18,062 
	 18,062 



	Disability Program
	Disability Program
	Disability Program
	Disability Program



	TR
	Incurred claims expense
	Incurred claims expense
	Incurred claims expense

	Change in premium deficiency reserves
	Change in premium deficiency reserves

	Administrative and claim processing expense
	Administrative and claim processing expense


	1,795
	1,795
	1,795

	(111)
	(111)

	1,252
	1,252


	2,196
	2,196
	2,196

	(185)
	(185)

	1,307
	1,307


	3,468
	3,468
	3,468

	147
	147

	1,335
	1,335


	3,917
	3,917
	3,917

	150
	150

	1,276
	1,276


	4,449
	4,449
	4,449

	-
	-

	1,180
	1,180


	3,416
	3,416
	3,416

	-
	-

	1,236
	1,236


	3,652
	3,652
	3,652

	-
	-

	1,401
	1,401


	 2,093
	 2,093
	 2,093

	- 
	- 

	 1,161 
	 1,161 


	 6,052
	 6,052
	 6,052

	- 
	- 

	 604 
	 604 


	 3,702
	 3,702
	 3,702

	- 
	- 

	 956 
	 956 



	       Total Disability Program expense
	       Total Disability Program expense
	       Total Disability Program expense
	       Total Disability Program expense


	2,936
	2,936
	2,936


	3,318
	3,318
	3,318


	4,950
	4,950
	4,950


	5,343
	5,343
	5,343


	5,629
	5,629
	5,629


	4,652
	4,652
	4,652


	5,053
	5,053
	5,053


	 3,254 
	 3,254 
	 3,254 


	 6,656 
	 6,656 
	 6,656 


	 4,658 
	 4,658 
	 4,658 



	Combined Programs
	Combined Programs
	Combined Programs
	Combined Programs



	TR
	Incurred claims expense
	Incurred claims expense
	Incurred claims expense

	Pass-through grant expense
	Pass-through grant expense

	Change in premium deficiency reserves
	Change in premium deficiency reserves

	Administrative and claim processing expense
	Administrative and claim processing expense


	1,015,375
	1,015,375
	1,015,375

	-
	-

	(10,365)
	(10,365)

	46,956
	46,956


	929,382
	929,382
	929,382

	-
	-

	43,435
	43,435

	50,028
	50,028


	873,841
	873,841
	873,841

	-
	-

	10,747
	10,747

	40,739
	40,739


	824,493
	824,493
	824,493

	-
	-

	(20,125)
	(20,125)

	38,697
	38,697


	770,933
	770,933
	770,933

	4,233
	4,233

	18,521
	18,521

	37,981
	37,981


	773,897
	773,897
	773,897

	4,988
	4,988

	1,754
	1,754

	38,415
	38,415


	820,376
	820,376
	820,376

	(11,915)
	(11,915)

	38,423
	38,423


	 789,029
	 789,029
	 789,029

	 
	 

	 (12,712)
	 (12,712)

	 38,717 
	 38,717 


	 753,137 
	 753,137 
	 753,137 

	 24,627 
	 24,627 

	 41,222 
	 41,222 


	 721,012 
	 721,012 
	 721,012 

	 (9,065)
	 (9,065)

	 39,804 
	 39,804 



	       Total Combined Programs expense
	       Total Combined Programs expense
	       Total Combined Programs expense
	       Total Combined Programs expense


	$ 1,051,966
	$ 1,051,966
	$ 1,051,966


	$ 1,022,845
	$ 1,022,845
	$ 1,022,845


	925,327
	925,327
	925,327


	843,065
	843,065
	843,065


	831,668
	831,668
	831,668


	   819,054
	   819,054
	   819,054


	846,884
	846,884
	846,884


	   815,034 
	   815,034 
	   815,034 


	 818,986 
	 818,986 
	 818,986 


	 751,751 
	 751,751 
	 751,751 






	Change in Fund Equity Over the Last Ten Fiscal Years
	Change in Fund Equity Over the Last Ten Fiscal Years
	Change in Fund Equity Over the Last Ten Fiscal Years

	(Accrual basis of accounting) 
	(Accrual basis of accounting) 
	l
	 
	 
	(Amounts expressed in thousands)
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	Table 2
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	Table
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	2015
	2015
	2015
	(1)(4)


	2014
	2014
	2014
	(1)(4)


	2013
	2013
	2013
	(1)(2)(6)


	2012
	2012
	2012
	(1)(2)(6)


	2011
	2011
	2011
	(1)(2)(6)


	2010
	2010
	2010
	(2)


	2009
	2009
	2009
	(2)


	2008
	2008
	2008
	(1)(3)


	2007
	2007
	2007
	(1)(5)


	2006
	2006
	2006
	(1)(5)



	Revenue
	Revenue
	Revenue
	Revenue



	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program



	TR
	Premiums
	Premiums
	Premiums

	Pass-through grant revenue
	Pass-through grant revenue

	Medicare Part D Subsidy 
	Medicare Part D Subsidy 

	Pharmacy rebates
	Pharmacy rebates

	Risk adjustment
	Risk adjustment

	Other
	Other

	Net investment income (loss)
	Net investment income (loss)


	$ 936,074
	$ 936,074
	$ 936,074

	-
	-

	13,474
	13,474

	-
	-

	74
	74

	49
	49

	3,567
	3,567


	$ 898,688
	$ 898,688
	$ 898,688

	-
	-

	13,665
	13,665

	-
	-

	931
	931

	6
	6

	16,561
	16,561


	856,614
	856,614
	856,614

	-
	-

	19,098
	19,098

	-
	-

	1,706
	1,706

	3
	3

	27,800
	27,800


	811,466
	811,466
	811,466

	-
	-

	21,705
	21,705

	-
	-

	1,496
	1,496

	54
	54

	18,203
	18,203


	800,156
	800,156
	800,156

	4,233
	4,233

	22,075
	22,075

	-
	-

	2,351
	2,351

	4,829
	4,829

	8,863
	8,863


	   792,495
	   792,495
	   792,495

	4,988
	4,988

	23,958
	23,958

	13,345
	13,345

	2,245
	2,245

	367
	367

	13,376
	13,376


	812,996
	812,996
	812,996

	-
	-

	25,173
	25,173

	13,060
	13,060

	1,670
	1,670

	 -
	 -

	13,215
	13,215


	    714,236 
	    714,236 
	    714,236 

	-
	-

	 23,817 
	 23,817 

	 12,145 
	 12,145 

	 2,147 
	 2,147 

	 91 
	 91 

	 (14,673)
	 (14,673)


	 749,855 
	 749,855 
	 749,855 

	-
	-

	 26,688 
	 26,688 

	 12,885 
	 12,885 

	 2,218 
	 2,218 

	 30 
	 30 

	 9,455 
	 9,455 


	 674,949 
	 674,949 
	 674,949 

	-
	-

	 25,599 
	 25,599 

	 11,490 
	 11,490 

	 1,564 
	 1,564 

	 - 
	 - 

	 10,504 
	 10,504 



	       Total Health and Dental Program revenue
	       Total Health and Dental Program revenue
	       Total Health and Dental Program revenue
	       Total Health and Dental Program revenue


	953,238
	953,238
	953,238


	929,851
	929,851
	929,851


	905,221
	905,221
	905,221


	852,924
	852,924
	852,924


	842,507
	842,507
	842,507


	850,774
	850,774
	850,774


	866,114
	866,114
	866,114


	 737,763 
	 737,763 
	 737,763 


	 801,131 
	 801,131 
	 801,131 


	 724,106 
	 724,106 
	 724,106 



	Life Program
	Life Program
	Life Program
	Life Program



	TR
	Premiums
	Premiums
	Premiums

	Net investment income (loss)
	Net investment income (loss)


	26,068
	26,068
	26,068

	475
	475


	24,946
	24,946
	24,946

	1,937
	1,937


	23,476
	23,476
	23,476

	3,417
	3,417


	22,074
	22,074
	22,074

	2,553
	2,553


	25,494
	25,494
	25,494

	1,459
	1,459


	23,830
	23,830
	23,830

	2,174
	2,174


	19,887
	19,887
	19,887

	2,393
	2,393


	 20,241 
	 20,241 
	 20,241 

	 (3,004)
	 (3,004)


	 18,784 
	 18,784 
	 18,784 

	 1,623 
	 1,623 


	 16,909 
	 16,909 
	 16,909 

	 1,788 
	 1,788 



	       Total Life Program revenue
	       Total Life Program revenue
	       Total Life Program revenue
	       Total Life Program revenue


	26,543
	26,543
	26,543


	26,883
	26,883
	26,883


	26,893
	26,893
	26,893


	24,627
	24,627
	24,627


	26,953
	26,953
	26,953


	26,004
	26,004
	26,004


	22,280
	22,280
	22,280


	 17,237 
	 17,237 
	 17,237 


	 20,407 
	 20,407 
	 20,407 


	 18,697 
	 18,697 
	 18,697 



	Disability Program
	Disability Program
	Disability Program
	Disability Program



	TR
	Premiums
	Premiums
	Premiums

	Other
	Other

	Net investment income (loss)
	Net investment income (loss)


	4,048
	4,048
	4,048

	-
	-

	905
	905


	4,059
	4,059
	4,059

	-
	-

	3,639
	3,639


	4,004
	4,004
	4,004

	-
	-

	5,772
	5,772


	3,973
	3,973
	3,973

	-
	-

	3,927
	3,927


	4,049
	4,049
	4,049

	-
	-

	2,342
	2,342


	4,227
	4,227
	4,227

	-
	-

	4,005
	4,005


	3,726
	3,726
	3,726

	 -
	 -

	4,365
	4,365


	 3,651 
	 3,651 
	 3,651 

	 - 
	 - 

	 (4,664)
	 (4,664)


	 3,635 
	 3,635 
	 3,635 

	 3 
	 3 

	 2,512 
	 2,512 


	 3,002 
	 3,002 
	 3,002 

	 - 
	 - 

	 2,781 
	 2,781 



	       Total Disability Program revenue
	       Total Disability Program revenue
	       Total Disability Program revenue
	       Total Disability Program revenue


	4,953
	4,953
	4,953


	7,698
	7,698
	7,698


	9,776
	9,776
	9,776


	7,900
	7,900
	7,900


	6,391
	6,391
	6,391


	8,232
	8,232
	8,232


	8,091
	8,091
	8,091


	 (1,013)
	 (1,013)
	 (1,013)


	 6,150 
	 6,150 
	 6,150 


	 5,783 
	 5,783 
	 5,783 



	Combined Programs
	Combined Programs
	Combined Programs
	Combined Programs



	TR
	Premiums
	Premiums
	Premiums

	Pass-through grant revenue
	Pass-through grant revenue

	Medicare Part D subsidy
	Medicare Part D subsidy

	Pharmacy rebates
	Pharmacy rebates

	Risk adjustment
	Risk adjustment

	Other
	Other

	Net investment income (loss)
	Net investment income (loss)


	966,190
	966,190
	966,190

	-
	-

	13,474
	13,474

	-
	-

	74
	74

	49
	49

	4,947
	4,947


	927,693
	927,693
	927,693

	-
	-

	13,665
	13,665

	-
	-

	931
	931

	6
	6

	22,137
	22,137


	884,094
	884,094
	884,094

	-
	-

	19,098
	19,098

	-
	-

	1,706
	1,706

	3
	3

	36,989
	36,989


	837,513
	837,513
	837,513

	-
	-

	21,705
	21,705

	-
	-

	1,496
	1,496

	54
	54

	24,683
	24,683


	829,699
	829,699
	829,699

	4,233
	4,233

	22,075
	22,075

	-
	-

	2,351
	2,351

	4,829
	4,829

	12,664
	12,664


	820,552
	820,552
	820,552

	4,988
	4,988

	23,958
	23,958

	13,345
	13,345

	2,245
	2,245

	367
	367

	19,555
	19,555


	836,609
	836,609
	836,609

	-
	-

	25,173
	25,173

	13,060
	13,060

	1,670
	1,670

	 -
	 -

	19,973
	19,973


	 738,128 
	 738,128 
	 738,128 

	-
	-

	 23,817 
	 23,817 

	 12,145 
	 12,145 

	 2,147 
	 2,147 

	 91 
	 91 

	 (22,341)
	 (22,341)


	 772,274 
	 772,274 
	 772,274 

	-
	-

	 26,688 
	 26,688 

	 12,885 
	 12,885 

	 2,218 
	 2,218 

	 33 
	 33 

	 13,590 
	 13,590 


	 694,860 
	 694,860 
	 694,860 

	-
	-

	 25,599 
	 25,599 

	 11,490 
	 11,490 

	 1,564 
	 1,564 

	 - 
	 - 

	 15,073 
	 15,073 



	       Total Combined Programs revenue
	       Total Combined Programs revenue
	       Total Combined Programs revenue
	       Total Combined Programs revenue


	984,734
	984,734
	984,734


	964,432
	964,432
	964,432


	941,890
	941,890
	941,890


	885,451
	885,451
	885,451


	875,851
	875,851
	875,851


	885,010
	885,010
	885,010


	896,485
	896,485
	896,485


	 753,987 
	 753,987 
	 753,987 


	 827,688 
	 827,688 
	 827,688 


	 748,586 
	 748,586 
	 748,586 



	Change in fund equity
	Change in fund equity
	Change in fund equity
	Change in fund equity



	TR
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program

	Life Program
	Life Program

	Disability Program
	Disability Program


	(66,571)
	(66,571)
	(66,571)

	(2,678)
	(2,678)

	2,017
	2,017


	(62,235)
	(62,235)
	(62,235)

	(558)
	(558)

	4,380
	4,380


	12,611
	12,611
	12,611

	(874)
	(874)

	4,826
	4,826


	40,948
	40,948
	40,948

	(1,119)
	(1,119)

	2,557
	2,557


	39,292
	39,292
	39,292

	4,129
	4,129

	762
	762


	57,822
	57,822
	57,822

	4,554
	4,554

	3,580
	3,580


	48,954
	48,954
	48,954

	(2,391)
	(2,391)

	3,038
	3,038


	 (52,286)
	 (52,286)
	 (52,286)

	 (4,494)
	 (4,494)

	 (4,267)
	 (4,267)


	 4,890 
	 4,890 
	 4,890 

	 4,318 
	 4,318 

	 (506)
	 (506)


	 (4,925)
	 (4,925)
	 (4,925)

	 635 
	 635 

	 1,125 
	 1,125 



	       Total Combined Programs change in fund equity
	       Total Combined Programs change in fund equity
	       Total Combined Programs change in fund equity
	       Total Combined Programs change in fund equity


	$ (67,232)
	$ (67,232)
	$ (67,232)


	$ (58,413)
	$ (58,413)
	$ (58,413)


	16,563
	16,563
	16,563


	42,386
	42,386
	42,386


	44,183
	44,183
	44,183


	  65,956
	  65,956
	  65,956


	 49,601
	 49,601
	 49,601


	   (61,047)
	   (61,047)
	   (61,047)


	 8,702 
	 8,702 
	 8,702 


	 (3,165)
	 (3,165)
	 (3,165)



	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	 For 2014, 2013, 2012, 2011, 2008, 2007, and 2006, premium rates were set at a level expected to use $28.5 million, 47.8 million, 38.7 million, $16.0 million, $22.8 million, $26.8 million and $13.6 
	million in fund equity, respectively.

	(2)
	(2)
	 The large increase in fund equity in 2003 and 2004, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is due to favorable claims experience.  

	(3)
	(3)
	 The large decrease in fund equity in 2008 is a result of unfavorable claims experience, coupled with investments losses due to a downturn in the economy.  

	(4)
	(4)
	 The large decrease in fund equity in 2014 is primarily a result of a $54.2 million premium deficiency in the health and denal fund.  

	(5)
	(5)
	 The 2007 and 2006 financial information has been adjusted to reflect the change in accounting principle and reporting presentation for comparability purposes.

	(6)
	(6)
	 Pharmacy rebates were reclassed begining in 2011 to offset claims expense.






	Change in Fund Equity Over the Last Ten Fiscal Years
	Change in Fund Equity Over the Last Ten Fiscal Years
	Change in Fund Equity Over the Last Ten Fiscal Years

	(Accrual basis of accounting) 
	(Accrual basis of accounting) 
	l
	 
	 
	(Amounts expressed in thousands)


	Table 2 cont.
	Table 2 cont.
	Table 2 cont.


	63
	63
	63


	Operating Revenues by Type of Entity 
	Operating Revenues by Type of Entity 
	Operating Revenues by Type of Entity 
	Operating Revenues by Type of Entity 
	Operating Revenues by Type of Entity 
	Operating Revenues by Type of Entity 
	Operating Revenues by Type of Entity 

	Last Ten Years
	Last Ten Years

	(Accrual basis of accounting) 
	(Accrual basis of accounting) 
	l
	 
	 
	(Amounts expressed in thousands)



	TR
	2015
	2015
	2015


	2014
	2014
	2014


	2013
	2013
	2013


	2012
	2012
	2012


	2011
	2011
	2011


	2010
	2010
	2010


	2009
	2009
	2009


	2008
	2008
	2008


	2007
	2007
	2007


	2006
	2006
	2006



	State and Local Government Entities
	State and Local Government Entities
	State and Local Government Entities
	State and Local Government Entities



	TR
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program


	$ 438,352
	$ 438,352
	$ 438,352


	$ 414,356
	$ 414,356
	$ 414,356


	393,527
	393,527
	393,527


	372,068
	372,068
	372,068


	373,297
	373,297
	373,297


	   378,498
	   378,498
	   378,498


	375,638
	375,638
	375,638


	    332,794 
	    332,794 
	    332,794 


	328,925
	328,925
	328,925


	296,877
	296,877
	296,877



	TR
	Life Program
	Life Program
	Life Program


	16,517
	16,517
	16,517


	15,900
	15,900
	15,900


	14,992
	14,992
	14,992


	14,269
	14,269
	14,269


	16,583
	16,583
	16,583


	15,773
	15,773
	15,773


	13,597
	13,597
	13,597


	14,111
	14,111
	14,111


	13,217
	13,217
	13,217


	12,096
	12,096
	12,096



	TR
	Disability Program
	Disability Program
	Disability Program


	4,048
	4,048
	4,048


	4,059
	4,059
	4,059


	4,004
	4,004
	4,004


	3,973
	3,973
	3,973


	4,049
	4,049
	4,049


	4,227
	4,227
	4,227


	3,726
	3,726
	3,726


	3,651
	3,651
	3,651


	3,638
	3,638
	3,638


	3,002
	3,002
	3,002



	TR
	Total
	Total
	Total


	458,916
	458,916
	458,916


	434,315
	434,315
	434,315


	412,523
	412,523
	412,523


	390,310
	390,310
	390,310


	393,928
	393,928
	393,928


	398,498
	398,498
	398,498


	392,961
	392,961
	392,961


	350,556
	350,556
	350,556


	345,779
	345,779
	345,779


	311,975
	311,975
	311,975



	Education Entities
	Education Entities
	Education Entities
	Education Entities



	TR
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program


	511,319
	511,319
	511,319


	498,934
	498,934
	498,934


	483,894
	483,894
	483,894


	462,652
	462,652
	462,652


	460,347
	460,347
	460,347


	458,901
	458,901
	458,901


	477,261
	477,261
	477,261


	419,641
	419,641
	419,641


	462,751
	462,751
	462,751


	416,724
	416,724
	416,724



	TR
	Life Program
	Life Program
	Life Program


	9,551
	9,551
	9,551


	9,046
	9,046
	9,046


	8,484
	8,484
	8,484


	7,805
	7,805
	7,805


	8,912
	8,912
	8,912


	8,057
	8,057
	8,057


	6,290
	6,290
	6,290


	6,130
	6,130
	6,130


	5,567
	5,567
	5,567


	4,813
	4,813
	4,813



	TR
	Total
	Total
	Total


	520,871
	520,871
	520,871


	507,980
	507,980
	507,980


	492,378
	492,378
	492,378


	470,457
	470,457
	470,457


	469,259
	469,259
	469,259


	466,958
	466,958
	466,958


	483,551
	483,551
	483,551


	425,771
	425,771
	425,771


	468,319
	468,319
	468,319


	421,537
	421,537
	421,537



	All Entities
	All Entities
	All Entities
	All Entities



	TR
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program
	Health and Dental Program


	949,671
	949,671
	949,671


	913,290
	913,290
	913,290


	877,421
	877,421
	877,421


	834,720
	834,720
	834,720


	833,643
	833,643
	833,643


	837,399
	837,399
	837,399


	852,899
	852,899
	852,899


	752,435
	752,435
	752,435


	791,676
	791,676
	791,676


	713,601
	713,601
	713,601



	TR
	Life Program
	Life Program
	Life Program


	26,068
	26,068
	26,068


	24,946
	24,946
	24,946


	23,476
	23,476
	23,476


	22,074
	22,074
	22,074


	25,495
	25,495
	25,495


	23,830
	23,830
	23,830


	19,887
	19,887
	19,887


	20,241
	20,241
	20,241


	18,784
	18,784
	18,784


	16,909
	16,909
	16,909



	TR
	Disability Program
	Disability Program
	Disability Program


	4,048
	4,048
	4,048


	4,059
	4,059
	4,059


	4,004
	4,004
	4,004


	3,973
	3,973
	3,973


	4,049
	4,049
	4,049


	4,227
	4,227
	4,227


	3,726
	3,726
	3,726


	3,651
	3,651
	3,651


	3,638
	3,638
	3,638


	3,002
	3,002
	3,002



	TR
	Total
	Total
	Total


	$ 979,787
	$ 979,787
	$ 979,787


	$ 942,295
	$ 942,295
	$ 942,295


	904,901
	904,901
	904,901


	860,767
	860,767
	860,767


	863,187
	863,187
	863,187


	   865,456
	   865,456
	   865,456


	  876,512
	  876,512
	  876,512


	    776,327 
	    776,327 
	    776,327 


	814,098
	814,098
	814,098


	733,512
	733,512
	733,512






	Table 3
	Table 3
	Table 3


	64
	64
	64


	Table 4
	Table 4
	Table 4


	Top Ten Sources of Premium Revenue
	Top Ten Sources of Premium Revenue
	Top Ten Sources of Premium Revenue
	Top Ten Sources of Premium Revenue
	Top Ten Sources of Premium Revenue
	Top Ten Sources of Premium Revenue
	Top Ten Sources of Premium Revenue

	Premiums Received During the Plan Year for the Last Five Years
	Premiums Received During the Plan Year for the Last Five Years

	(Amounts expressed in thousands)
	(Amounts expressed in thousands)



	TR
	2015
	2015

	2012
	2012


	TR
	Group
	Group

	Receipts
	Receipts

	Group
	Group

	Receipts
	Receipts


	TR
	Employees Benefits Department
	Employees Benefits Department
	Employees Benefits Department

	Teachers Retirement System
	Teachers Retirement System

	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System
	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System

	Tulsa Public Schools
	Tulsa Public Schools

	Oklahoma City Public Schools
	Oklahoma City Public Schools

	Edmond Public Schools
	Edmond Public Schools

	Moore Public Schools
	Moore Public Schools

	Putnam City Public Schools
	Putnam City Public Schools

	Broken Arrow Public Schools
	Broken Arrow Public Schools

	Lawton Public Schools
	Lawton Public Schools


	$
	$
	$
	$
	$

	295,180

	$
	$
	$

	131,762

	$
	$
	$

	86,347

	$
	$
	$

	29,933

	$
	$
	$

	27,554

	$
	$
	$

	12,838

	$
	$
	$

	12,641

	$
	$
	$

	12,320

	$
	$
	$

	11,378

	$
	$
	$

	10,936



	Employees Benefits Council
	Employees Benefits Council
	Employees Benefits Council

	Teachers Retirement System
	Teachers Retirement System

	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System
	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System

	Tulsa Public Schools
	Tulsa Public Schools

	Oklahoma City Public Schools
	Oklahoma City Public Schools

	Edmond Public Schools
	Edmond Public Schools

	Moore Public Schools
	Moore Public Schools

	Lawton Public Schools
	Lawton Public Schools

	Putnam City Public Schools
	Putnam City Public Schools

	Norman Public Schools
	Norman Public Schools


	$
	$
	$
	$
	$

	224,944

	$
	$
	$

	133,149

	$
	$
	$

	74,394

	$
	$
	$

	27,380

	$
	$
	$

	22,657

	$
	$
	$

	11,283

	$
	$
	$

	11,113

	$
	$
	$

	10,696

	$
	$
	$

	10,309

	$
	$
	$

	7,806




	TR
	2014
	2014

	2011
	2011


	TR
	Group
	Group

	Receipts
	Receipts

	Group
	Group

	Receipts
	Receipts


	TR
	Employees Benefits Department
	Employees Benefits Department
	Employees Benefits Department

	Teachers Retirement System
	Teachers Retirement System

	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System
	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System

	Tulsa Public Schools
	Tulsa Public Schools

	Oklahoma City Public Schools
	Oklahoma City Public Schools

	Edmond Public Schools
	Edmond Public Schools

	Putnam City Public Schools
	Putnam City Public Schools

	Moore Public Schools
	Moore Public Schools

	Lawton Public Schools
	Lawton Public Schools

	Broken Arrow Public Schools
	Broken Arrow Public Schools


	$
	$
	$
	$
	$

	274,928

	$
	$
	$

	127,575

	$
	$
	$

	98,280

	$
	$
	$

	28,512

	$
	$
	$

	23,492

	$
	$
	$

	12,356

	$
	$
	$

	11,463

	$
	$
	$

	10,908

	$
	$
	$

	10,872

	$
	$
	$

	10,396



	Employees Benefits Council
	Employees Benefits Council
	Employees Benefits Council

	Teachers Retirement System
	Teachers Retirement System

	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System
	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System

	Tulsa Public Schools
	Tulsa Public Schools

	Oklahoma City Public Schools
	Oklahoma City Public Schools

	Lawton Public Schools
	Lawton Public Schools

	Edmond Public Schools 
	Edmond Public Schools 

	Moore Public Schools
	Moore Public Schools

	Putnam City Public Schools
	Putnam City Public Schools

	Norman Public Schools
	Norman Public Schools


	$
	$
	$
	$
	$

	246,072

	$
	$
	$

	120,508

	$
	$
	$

	78,273

	$
	$
	$

	27,964

	$
	$
	$

	22,158

	$
	$
	$

	11,279

	$
	$
	$

	11,009

	$
	$
	$

	10,723

	$
	$
	$

	9,747

	$
	$
	$

	7,884




	TR
	2013
	2013


	TR
	Group
	Group

	Receipts
	Receipts


	TR
	Employees Benefits Department
	Employees Benefits Department
	Employees Benefits Department

	Teachers Retirement System
	Teachers Retirement System

	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System
	Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System

	Tulsa Public Schools
	Tulsa Public Schools

	Oklahoma City Public Schools
	Oklahoma City Public Schools

	Edmond Public Schools
	Edmond Public Schools

	Moore Public Schools
	Moore Public Schools

	Lawton Public Schools
	Lawton Public Schools

	Putnam City Public Schools
	Putnam City Public Schools

	Broken Arrow Public Schools
	Broken Arrow Public Schools


	$
	$
	$
	$
	$

	257,853

	$
	$
	$

	133,175

	$
	$
	$

	85,569

	$
	$
	$

	26,752

	$
	$
	$

	23,402

	$
	$
	$

	11,658

	$
	$
	$

	11,443

	$
	$
	$

	10,662

	$
	$
	$

	10,589

	$
	$
	$

	8,961







	65
	65
	65


	HealthChoice Medical Participation
	HealthChoice Medical Participation
	HealthChoice Medical Participation
	HealthChoice Medical Participation
	HealthChoice Medical Participation
	HealthChoice Medical Participation
	HealthChoice Medical Participation



	Last Ten Years
	Last Ten Years
	Last Ten Years
	Last Ten Years



	TR
	State Entities
	State Entities
	State Entities


	Local Government Entities
	Local Government Entities
	Local Government Entities


	Education Entities
	Education Entities
	Education Entities



	TR
	Current
	Current
	Current


	Former
	Former
	Former


	Current
	Current
	Current


	Former
	Former
	Former


	Current
	Current
	Current


	Former
	Former
	Former



	Year Ended
	Year Ended
	Year Ended
	Year Ended


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Total
	Total
	Total



	2015
	2015
	2015
	2015


	24,982
	24,982
	24,982


	33,907
	33,907
	33,907


	14,626
	14,626
	14,626


	2,814
	2,814
	2,814


	8,290
	8,290
	8,290


	1,871
	1,871
	1,871


	160
	160
	160


	26
	26
	26


	54,831
	54,831
	54,831


	18,292
	18,292
	18,292


	24,117
	24,117
	24,117


	3,239
	3,239
	3,239


	187,155
	187,155
	187,155



	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014


	23,007
	23,007
	23,007


	30,081
	30,081
	30,081


	14,655
	14,655
	14,655


	2,843
	2,843
	2,843


	7,934
	7,934
	7,934


	1,622
	1,622
	1,622


	154
	154
	154


	28
	28
	28


	52,227
	52,227
	52,227


	17,047
	17,047
	17,047


	23,841
	23,841
	23,841


	3,280
	3,280
	3,280


	176,719
	176,719
	176,719



	2013
	2013
	2013
	2013


	21,503
	21,503
	21,503


	27,471
	27,471
	27,471


	14,660
	14,660
	14,660


	2,867
	2,867
	2,867


	7,646
	7,646
	7,646


	1,726
	1,726
	1,726


	203
	203
	203


	38
	38
	38


	49,653
	49,653
	49,653


	16,608
	16,608
	16,608


	23,737
	23,737
	23,737


	3,421
	3,421
	3,421


	169,533
	169,533
	169,533



	2012
	2012
	2012
	2012


	20,186
	20,186
	20,186


	25,705
	25,705
	25,705


	14,649
	14,649
	14,649


	2,926
	2,926
	2,926


	7,892
	7,892
	7,892


	1,746
	1,746
	1,746


	185
	185
	185


	40
	40
	40


	48,028
	48,028
	48,028


	16,251
	16,251
	16,251


	23,384
	23,384
	23,384


	3,498
	3,498
	3,498


	164,490
	164,490
	164,490



	2011
	2011
	2011
	2011


	20,285
	20,285
	20,285


	24,959
	24,959
	24,959


	14,793
	14,793
	14,793


	3,029
	3,029
	3,029


	7,772
	7,772
	7,772


	1,770
	1,770
	1,770


	171
	171
	171


	33
	33
	33


	46,645
	46,645
	46,645


	16,101
	16,101
	16,101


	23,368
	23,368
	23,368


	3,632
	3,632
	3,632


	162,558
	162,558
	162,558



	2010
	2010
	2010
	2010


	21,006
	21,006
	21,006


	25,001
	25,001
	25,001


	14,678
	14,678
	14,678


	3,054
	3,054
	3,054


	7,939
	7,939
	7,939


	1,889
	1,889
	1,889


	129
	129
	129


	25
	25
	25


	46,503
	46,503
	46,503


	16,419
	16,419
	16,419


	22,992
	22,992
	22,992


	3,610
	3,610
	3,610


	163,245
	163,245
	163,245



	2009
	2009
	2009
	2009


	23,702
	23,702
	23,702


	27,373
	27,373
	27,373


	14,622
	14,622
	14,622


	3,117
	3,117
	3,117


	8,751
	8,751
	8,751


	2,206
	2,206
	2,206


	171
	171
	171


	49
	49
	49


	53,294
	53,294
	53,294


	19,934
	19,934
	19,934


	24,665
	24,665
	24,665


	4,095
	4,095
	4,095


	181,979
	181,979
	181,979



	2008
	2008
	2008
	2008


	24,362
	24,362
	24,362


	26,508
	26,508
	26,508


	14,445
	14,445
	14,445


	3,103
	3,103
	3,103


	9,125
	9,125
	9,125


	2,471
	2,471
	2,471


	126
	126
	126


	37
	37
	37


	52,180
	52,180
	52,180


	20,798
	20,798
	20,798


	24,055
	24,055
	24,055


	4,067
	4,067
	4,067


	181,277
	181,277
	181,277



	2007
	2007
	2007
	2007


	24,349
	24,349
	24,349


	23,567
	23,567
	23,567


	14,357
	14,357
	14,357


	3,056
	3,056
	3,056


	8,979
	8,979
	8,979


	2,409
	2,409
	2,409


	103
	103
	103


	32
	32
	32


	56,622
	56,622
	56,622


	22,588
	22,588
	22,588


	24,637
	24,637
	24,637


	4,273
	4,273
	4,273


	184,972
	184,972
	184,972



	2006
	2006
	2006
	2006


	26,021
	26,021
	26,021


	23,829
	23,829
	23,829


	14,281
	14,281
	14,281


	3,114
	3,114
	3,114


	8,394
	8,394
	8,394


	2,618
	2,618
	2,618


	87
	87
	87


	30
	30
	30


	56,758
	56,758
	56,758


	24,661
	24,661
	24,661


	24,279
	24,279
	24,279


	4,315
	4,315
	4,315


	188,387
	188,387
	188,387



	HMO Participation
	HMO Participation
	HMO Participation
	HMO Participation



	TR
	State Entities 
	State Entities 
	State Entities 
	(1)


	Local Government Entities
	Local Government Entities
	Local Government Entities


	Education Entities
	Education Entities
	Education Entities



	TR
	Current
	Current
	Current


	Former
	Former
	Former


	Current
	Current
	Current


	Former
	Former
	Former


	Current
	Current
	Current


	Former
	Former
	Former



	Year Ended
	Year Ended
	Year Ended
	Year Ended


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Total
	Total
	Total



	2015
	2015
	2015
	2015


	9,891
	9,891
	9,891


	12,693
	12,693
	12,693


	1,824
	1,824
	1,824


	328
	328
	328


	494
	494
	494


	239
	239
	239


	8
	8
	8


	2
	2
	2


	9,735
	9,735
	9,735


	3,293
	3,293
	3,293


	2,187
	2,187
	2,187


	296
	296
	296


	40,990
	40,990
	40,990



	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014


	11,701
	11,701
	11,701


	15,668
	15,668
	15,668


	1,831
	1,831
	1,831


	351
	351
	351


	554
	554
	554


	296
	296
	296


	6
	6
	6


	2
	2
	2


	10,663
	10,663
	10,663


	3,794
	3,794
	3,794


	2,233
	2,233
	2,233


	332
	332
	332


	47,431
	47,431
	47,431



	2013
	2013
	2013
	2013


	12,161
	12,161
	12,161


	16,245
	16,245
	16,245


	1,880
	1,880
	1,880


	387
	387
	387


	606
	606
	606


	329
	329
	329


	8
	8
	8


	3
	3
	3


	10,737
	10,737
	10,737


	4,105
	4,105
	4,105


	2,255
	2,255
	2,255


	355
	355
	355


	49,071
	49,071
	49,071



	2012
	2012
	2012
	2012


	13,767
	13,767
	13,767


	17,988
	17,988
	17,988


	2,189
	2,189
	2,189


	448
	448
	448


	662
	662
	662


	379
	379
	379


	8
	8
	8


	2
	2
	2


	11,945
	11,945
	11,945


	4,896
	4,896
	4,896


	2,456
	2,456
	2,456


	382
	382
	382


	55,122
	55,122
	55,122



	2011
	2011
	2011
	2011


	13,739
	13,739
	13,739


	17,974
	17,974
	17,974


	2,116
	2,116
	2,116


	442
	442
	442


	598
	598
	598


	402
	402
	402


	7
	7
	7


	2
	2
	2


	12,259
	12,259
	12,259


	5,203
	5,203
	5,203


	2,394
	2,394
	2,394


	420
	420
	420


	55,556
	55,556
	55,556



	2010
	2010
	2010
	2010


	14,229
	14,229
	14,229


	17,941
	17,941
	17,941


	1,876
	1,876
	1,876


	421
	421
	421


	626
	626
	626


	374
	374
	374


	5
	5
	5


	3
	3
	3


	12,903
	12,903
	12,903


	5,421
	5,421
	5,421


	2,165
	2,165
	2,165


	387
	387
	387


	56,351
	56,351
	56,351



	2009
	2009
	2009
	2009


	13,742
	13,742
	13,742


	16,716
	16,716
	16,716


	1,702
	1,702
	1,702


	386
	386
	386


	799
	799
	799


	382
	382
	382


	12
	12
	12


	6
	6
	6


	12,348
	12,348
	12,348


	5,373
	5,373
	5,373


	2,122
	2,122
	2,122


	405
	405
	405


	53,993
	53,993
	53,993



	2008
	2008
	2008
	2008


	13,606
	13,606
	13,606


	16,017
	16,017
	16,017


	1,644
	1,644
	1,644


	374
	374
	374


	939
	939
	939


	420
	420
	420


	4
	4
	4


	3
	3
	3


	11,877
	11,877
	11,877


	5,138
	5,138
	5,138


	2,106
	2,106
	2,106


	434
	434
	434


	52,562
	52,562
	52,562



	2007
	2007
	2007
	2007


	13,408
	13,408
	13,408


	15,337
	15,337
	15,337


	1,560
	1,560
	1,560


	394
	394
	394


	927
	927
	927


	463
	463
	463


	7
	7
	7


	3
	3
	3


	12,697
	12,697
	12,697


	6,551
	6,551
	6,551


	2,077
	2,077
	2,077


	465
	465
	465


	53,889
	53,889
	53,889



	2006
	2006
	2006
	2006


	11,850
	11,850
	11,850


	12,677
	12,677
	12,677


	1,342
	1,342
	1,342


	354
	354
	354


	768
	768
	768


	400
	400
	400


	3
	3
	3


	2
	2
	2


	11,652
	11,652
	11,652


	6,367
	6,367
	6,367


	1,863
	1,863
	1,863


	427
	427
	427


	47,705
	47,705
	47,705



	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	 HMO premiums for current state employees and their dependents are collected by the Employees Benefits Department and remitted to the HMO.






	Table 5A
	Table 5A
	Table 5A


	66
	66
	66


	Table 5B
	Table 5B
	Table 5B


	HealthChoice Dental Participation
	HealthChoice Dental Participation
	HealthChoice Dental Participation
	HealthChoice Dental Participation
	HealthChoice Dental Participation
	HealthChoice Dental Participation
	HealthChoice Dental Participation



	Last Ten Years
	Last Ten Years
	Last Ten Years
	Last Ten Years



	TR
	State Entities
	State Entities
	State Entities


	Local Government
	Local Government
	Local Government


	Education Entities
	Education Entities
	Education Entities



	Year Ended
	Year Ended
	Year Ended
	Year Ended


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Total
	Total
	Total



	2015
	2015
	2015
	2015


	34,627
	34,627
	34,627


	30,773
	30,773
	30,773


	6,042
	6,042
	6,042


	2,685
	2,685
	2,685


	62,541
	62,541
	62,541


	31,929
	31,929
	31,929


	168,597
	168,597
	168,597



	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014


	34,750
	34,750
	34,750


	30,684
	30,684
	30,684


	6,020
	6,020
	6,020


	2,615
	2,615
	2,615


	61,678
	61,678
	61,678


	31,809
	31,809
	31,809


	167,556
	167,556
	167,556



	2013
	2013
	2013
	2013


	34,484
	34,484
	34,484


	30,169
	30,169
	30,169


	6,007
	6,007
	6,007


	2,777
	2,777
	2,777


	60,877
	60,877
	60,877


	31,687
	31,687
	31,687


	166,001
	166,001
	166,001



	2012
	2012
	2012
	2012


	35,160
	35,160
	35,160


	30,740
	30,740
	30,740


	6,165
	6,165
	6,165


	2,910
	2,910
	2,910


	61,370
	61,370
	61,370


	32,136
	32,136
	32,136


	168,481
	168,481
	168,481



	2011
	2011
	2011
	2011


	35,717
	35,717
	35,717


	30,777
	30,777
	30,777


	6,070
	6,070
	6,070


	2,991
	2,991
	2,991


	61,360
	61,360
	61,360


	32,438
	32,438
	32,438


	169,353
	169,353
	169,353



	2010
	2010
	2010
	2010


	36,122
	36,122
	36,122


	30,916
	30,916
	30,916


	5,954
	5,954
	5,954


	2,897
	2,897
	2,897


	59,081
	59,081
	59,081


	31,044
	31,044
	31,044


	166,014
	166,014
	166,014



	2009
	2009
	2009
	2009


	38,587
	38,587
	38,587


	33,105
	33,105
	33,105


	6,756
	6,756
	6,756


	3,425
	3,425
	3,425


	64,890
	64,890
	64,890


	34,459
	34,459
	34,459


	181,222
	181,222
	181,222



	2008
	2008
	2008
	2008


	39,108
	39,108
	39,108


	32,626
	32,626
	32,626


	7,114
	7,114
	7,114


	3,597
	3,597
	3,597


	63,566
	63,566
	63,566


	33,885
	33,885
	33,885


	179,896
	179,896
	179,896



	2007
	2007
	2007
	2007


	39,023
	39,023
	39,023


	30,845
	30,845
	30,845


	6,964
	6,964
	6,964


	3,492
	3,492
	3,492


	62,205
	62,205
	62,205


	33,124
	33,124
	33,124


	175,653
	175,653
	175,653



	2006
	2006
	2006
	2006


	38,953
	38,953
	38,953


	29,298
	29,298
	29,298


	6,736
	6,736
	6,736


	3,457
	3,457
	3,457


	61,536
	61,536
	61,536


	33,346
	33,346
	33,346


	173,326
	173,326
	173,326



	DMO Participation
	DMO Participation
	DMO Participation
	DMO Participation



	TR
	State Entities 
	State Entities 
	State Entities 
	(1)


	Local Government
	Local Government
	Local Government


	Education Entities
	Education Entities
	Education Entities



	Year Ended
	Year Ended
	Year Ended
	Year Ended


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Employees
	Employees
	Employees


	Dependents
	Dependents
	Dependents


	Total
	Total
	Total



	2015
	2015
	2015
	2015


	15,395
	15,395
	15,395


	17,619
	17,619
	17,619


	1,592
	1,592
	1,592


	809
	809
	809


	22,580
	22,580
	22,580


	12,503
	12,503
	12,503


	70,498
	70,498
	70,498



	2014
	2014
	2014
	2014


	14,762
	14,762
	14,762


	16,738
	16,738
	16,738


	1,332
	1,332
	1,332


	634
	634
	634


	21,040
	21,040
	21,040


	11,817
	11,817
	11,817


	66,323
	66,323
	66,323



	2013
	2013
	2013
	2013


	13,620
	13,620
	13,620


	15,173
	15,173
	15,173


	1,259
	1,259
	1,259


	603
	603
	603


	19,340
	19,340
	19,340


	11,316
	11,316
	11,316


	61,311
	61,311
	61,311



	2012
	2012
	2012
	2012


	13,147
	13,147
	13,147


	14,539
	14,539
	14,539


	1,113
	1,113
	1,113


	560
	560
	560


	17,965
	17,965
	17,965


	10,960
	10,960
	10,960


	58,284
	58,284
	58,284



	2011
	2011
	2011
	2011


	12,282
	12,282
	12,282


	13,495
	13,495
	13,495


	925
	925
	925


	505
	505
	505


	16,290
	16,290
	16,290


	10,361
	10,361
	10,361


	53,858
	53,858
	53,858



	2010
	2010
	2010
	2010


	11,593
	11,593
	11,593


	12,470
	12,470
	12,470


	910
	910
	910


	528
	528
	528


	16,501
	16,501
	16,501


	10,303
	10,303
	10,303


	52,305
	52,305
	52,305



	2009
	2009
	2009
	2009


	11,574
	11,574
	11,574


	12,313
	12,313
	12,313


	1,230
	1,230
	1,230


	681
	681
	681


	16,785
	16,785
	16,785


	10,774
	10,774
	10,774


	53,357
	53,357
	53,357



	2008
	2008
	2008
	2008


	11,061
	11,061
	11,061


	11,493
	11,493
	11,493


	1,181
	1,181
	1,181


	674
	674
	674


	15,617
	15,617
	15,617


	10,212
	10,212
	10,212


	50,238
	50,238
	50,238



	2007
	2007
	2007
	2007


	10,452
	10,452
	10,452


	10,342
	10,342
	10,342


	1,124
	1,124
	1,124


	668
	668
	668


	14,045
	14,045
	14,045


	9,399
	9,399
	9,399


	46,030
	46,030
	46,030



	2006
	2006
	2006
	2006


	10,096
	10,096
	10,096


	9,852
	9,852
	9,852


	950
	950
	950


	604
	604
	604


	12,634
	12,634
	12,634


	8,903
	8,903
	8,903


	43,039
	43,039
	43,039



	Note
	Note
	Note
	Note
	: 
	Dental participation is not tracked separately for current employees or former employees.



	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	(1)
	 DMO premiums for current state employees and their dependents are collected by the Employees Benefits Department and remitted to the DMO.






	67
	67
	67


	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories

	L
	L
	ast Ten Years



	HealthChoice High
	HealthChoice High
	HealthChoice High
	   Current Employees 


	Year
	Year
	Year
	Year


	Employee
	Employee
	Employee


	Spouse
	Spouse
	Spouse


	One Child
	One Child
	One Child


	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children



	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	2015 

	CY 
	CY 
	2014 

	CY 
	CY 
	2013 

	CY 
	CY 
	2012

	CY 
	CY 
	2011

	CY 
	CY 
	2010

	CY 
	CY 
	2009

	CY 
	CY 
	2008

	CY 
	CY 
	2007

	CY 
	CY 
	2006


	$499.42
	$499.42
	$499.42

	484.87
	484.87

	463.99
	463.99

	449.48
	449.48

	449.48
	449.48

	442.80
	442.80

	409.12
	409.12

	364.24 
	364.24 

	364.24
	364.24

	310.46
	310.46


	$676.28
	$676.28
	$676.28

	675.82
	675.82

	681.96
	681.96

	668.10
	668.10

	682.74
	682.74

	625.88
	625.88

	587.92
	587.92

	496.61
	496.61

	554.18
	554.18

	450.22
	450.22


	$253.56
	$253.56
	$253.56

	246.17
	246.17

	235.57
	235.57

	228.20
	228.20

	228.20
	228.20

	228.32
	228.32

	199.98
	199.98

	181.44
	181.44

	189.04
	189.04

	157.10
	157.10


	$391.20
	$391.20
	$391.20

	379.81
	379.81

	363.45
	363.45

	352.08
	352.08

	352.08
	352.08

	342.44
	342.44

	343.10
	343.10

	290.22
	290.22

	298.60
	298.60

	250.40
	250.40



	HealthChoice High
	HealthChoice High
	HealthChoice High
	   Former Employees Under Age 65


	 Year
	 Year
	 Year
	 Year


	Employee
	Employee
	Employee


	Spouse
	Spouse
	Spouse


	One Child
	One Child
	One Child


	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children



	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	2015 

	CY 
	CY 
	2014 

	CY 
	CY 
	2013 

	CY 
	CY 
	2012

	CY 
	CY 
	2011

	CY 
	CY 
	2010

	CY 
	CY 
	2009

	CY 
	CY 
	2008

	CY 
	CY 
	2007

	CY 
	CY 
	2006


	$499.42
	$499.42
	$499.42

	484.87
	484.87

	463.99
	463.99

	449.48
	449.48

	449.48
	449.48

	442.80
	442.80

	409.12
	409.12

	364.24
	364.24

	364.24
	364.24

	400.46
	400.46


	$676.28
	$676.28
	$676.28

	675.82
	675.82

	681.96
	681.96

	668.10
	668.10

	682.74
	682.74

	625.88
	625.88

	587.92
	587.92

	496.61
	496.61

	554.18
	554.18

	583.68
	583.68


	$253.56
	$253.56
	$253.56

	246.17
	246.17

	235.57
	235.57

	228.20
	228.20

	228.20
	228.20

	228.32
	228.32

	199.98
	199.98

	181.44
	181.44

	189.04
	189.04

	157.10
	157.10


	$391.20
	$391.20
	$391.20

	379.81
	379.81

	363.45
	363.45

	352.08
	352.08

	352.08
	352.08

	342.44
	342.44

	343.10
	343.10

	290.22
	290.22

	298.60
	298.60

	250.40
	250.40



	HealthChoice High
	HealthChoice High
	HealthChoice High
	   Former Employees Ages 65 and Over


	 Year
	 Year
	 Year
	 Year


	Employee
	Employee
	Employee


	Spouse
	Spouse
	Spouse


	One Child
	One Child
	One Child


	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children



	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	2015 

	CY 
	CY 
	2014 

	CY 
	CY 
	2013 

	CY 
	CY 
	2012

	CY 
	CY 
	2011

	CY 
	CY 
	2010

	CY 
	CY 
	2009

	CY 
	CY 
	2008

	CY 
	CY 
	2007

	CY 
	CY 
	2006


	$307.28
	$307.28
	$307.28

	323.38
	323.38

	316.34
	316.34

	332.54
	332.54

	332.54
	332.54

	289.42
	289.42

	279.28
	279.28

	245.80
	245.80

	245.80
	245.80

	245.80
	245.80


	$307.28
	$307.28
	$307.28

	323.38
	323.38

	316.34
	316.34

	332.54
	332.54

	308.34
	308.34

	289.42
	289.42

	279.28
	279.28

	245.80
	245.80

	245.80
	245.80

	245.80
	245.80


	$307.28
	$307.28
	$307.28

	323.38
	323.38

	316.34
	316.34

	332.54
	332.54

	308.34
	308.34

	289.42
	289.42

	279.28
	279.28

	245.80
	245.80

	245.80
	245.80

	245.80
	245.80


	$307.28
	$307.28
	$307.28

	323.38
	323.38

	316.34
	316.34

	332.54
	332.54

	616.68
	616.68

	578.84
	578.84

	558.56
	558.56

	491.60
	491.60

	491.60
	491.60

	491.60
	491.60



	CY
	CY
	CY
	CY
	 - Calendar Year         
	 






	Table 6
	Table 6
	Table 6
	A
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	68
	68


	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories

	L
	L
	ast Ten Years



	HealthChoice Basic/Low
	HealthChoice Basic/Low
	HealthChoice Basic/Low
	   Current Employees


	Year
	Year
	Year
	Year


	Employee
	Employee
	Employee


	Spouse
	Spouse
	Spouse


	One Child
	One Child
	One Child


	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children



	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	2015 

	CY 
	CY 
	2014 

	CY 
	CY 
	2013 

	CY 
	CY 
	2012

	CY 
	CY 
	2011

	CY 
	CY 
	2010

	CY 
	CY 
	2009

	CY 
	CY 
	2008

	CY 
	CY 
	2007

	CY 
	CY 
	2006


	$391.52
	$391.52
	$391.52

	421.11
	421.11

	402.98
	402.98

	391.64
	391.64

	391.64
	391.64

	384.22
	384.22

	347.96
	347.96

	318.18
	318.18

	318.18
	318.18

	269.22
	269.22


	$501.74
	$501.74
	$501.74

	594.78
	594.78

	593.32
	593.32

	571.84
	571.84

	598.48
	598.48

	546.84
	546.84

	503.74
	503.74

	425.65
	425.65

	491.20
	491.20

	388.18
	388.18


	$215.94
	$215.94
	$215.94

	217.00
	217.00

	207.66
	207.66

	201.82
	201.82

	201.82
	201.82

	200.36
	200.36

	171.56
	171.56

	155.32
	155.32

	165.14
	165.14

	135.18
	135.18


	$342.74
	$342.74
	$342.74

	334.19
	334.19

	319.80
	319.80

	310.80
	310.80

	310.80
	310.80

	300.88
	300.88

	586.88
	586.88

	248.88 
	248.88 

	262.08
	262.08

	215.46
	215.46



	HealthChoice Basic/Low
	HealthChoice Basic/Low
	HealthChoice Basic/Low
	   Former Employees Under Age 65


	Year
	Year
	Year
	Year


	Employee
	Employee
	Employee


	Spouse
	Spouse
	Spouse


	One Child
	One Child
	One Child


	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children



	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	2015 

	CY 
	CY 
	2014 

	CY 
	CY 
	2013 

	CY 
	CY 
	2012

	CY 
	CY 
	2011

	CY 
	CY 
	2010

	CY 
	CY 
	2009

	CY 
	CY 
	2008

	CY 
	CY 
	2007

	CY 
	CY 
	2006


	$391.52
	$391.52
	$391.52

	421.11
	421.11

	402.98
	402.98

	391.64
	391.64

	391.64
	391.64

	384.22
	384.22

	347.96
	347.96

	318.18
	318.18

	318.18
	318.18

	359.22
	359.22


	$501.74
	$501.74
	$501.74

	594.78
	594.78

	593.52
	593.52

	571.84
	571.84

	598.48
	598.48

	546.84
	546.84

	503.74
	503.74

	425.65
	425.65

	491.20 
	491.20 

	504.90 
	504.90 


	$215.94
	$215.94
	$215.94

	217.00
	217.00

	207.66
	207.66

	201.82
	201.82

	201.82
	201.82

	200.36
	200.36

	171.56
	171.56

	155.32
	155.32

	165.14 
	165.14 

	135.18 
	135.18 


	$342.74
	$342.74
	$342.74

	334.19
	334.19

	319.80
	319.80

	310.80
	310.80

	310.80
	310.80

	300.88
	300.88

	586.88
	586.88

	248.88
	248.88

	262.08
	262.08

	215.46
	215.46



	HealthChoice Basic/Low
	HealthChoice Basic/Low
	HealthChoice Basic/Low
	   Former Employees Ages 65 and Over


	Year
	Year
	Year
	Year


	Employee
	Employee
	Employee


	Spouse
	Spouse
	Spouse


	One Child
	One Child
	One Child


	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children



	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	2015 

	CY 
	CY 
	2014 

	CY 
	CY 
	2013 

	CY 
	CY 
	2012

	CY 
	CY 
	2011

	CY 
	CY 
	2010

	CY 
	CY 
	2009

	CY 
	CY 
	2008

	CY 
	CY 
	2007

	CY 
	CY 
	2006


	$239.90
	$239.90
	$239.90

	261.84
	261.84

	255.62
	255.62

	273.02
	273.02

	251.66
	251.66

	236.10
	236.10

	222.92
	222.92

	197.32
	197.32

	197.32
	197.32

	197.32
	197.32


	$239.90
	$239.90
	$239.90

	261.84
	261.84

	255.62
	255.62

	273.02
	273.02

	251.66
	251.66

	236.10
	236.10

	222.92
	222.92

	197.32
	197.32

	197.32
	197.32

	197.32
	197.32


	$239.90
	$239.90
	$239.90

	261.84
	261.84

	255.62
	255.62

	273.02
	273.02

	251.66
	251.66

	236.10
	236.10

	222.92
	222.92

	197.32
	197.32

	197.32
	197.32

	197.32
	197.32


	$239.90
	$239.90
	$239.90

	261.84
	261.84

	255.62
	255.62

	273.02
	273.02

	503.32
	503.32

	472.20
	472.20

	445.84
	445.84

	394.64
	394.64

	394.64
	394.64

	394.64
	394.64



	CY
	CY
	CY
	CY
	 - Calendar Year   






	Table 6
	Table 6
	Table 6
	B


	69
	69
	69


	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories
	Monthly Premiums by Coverage Type and Billing Categories

	L
	L
	ast Ten Years



	HealthChoice Dental  
	HealthChoice Dental  
	HealthChoice Dental  


	Year
	Year
	Year
	Year


	Employee
	Employee
	Employee


	Spouse
	Spouse
	Spouse


	One Child
	One Child
	One Child


	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children
	Two or More Children



	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	CY 
	2015 

	CY 
	CY 
	2014 

	CY 
	CY 
	2013 

	CY 
	CY 
	2012

	CY 
	CY 
	2011

	CY 
	CY 
	2010

	CY 
	CY 
	2009

	CY 
	CY 
	2008

	CY 
	CY 
	2007

	CY 
	CY 
	2006


	$32.00
	$32.00
	$32.00

	31.38
	31.38

	31.38
	31.38

	30.20
	30.20

	29.84
	29.84

	30.28
	30.28

	28.58
	28.58

	26.80
	26.80

	26.80
	26.80

	26.80
	26.80


	$32.00
	$32.00
	$32.00

	31.38
	31.38

	31.38
	31.38

	30.20
	30.20

	29.84
	29.84

	30.28
	30.28

	28.58
	28.58

	26.80
	26.80

	26.80
	26.80
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